
1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 405 
San Mateo, CA  94402-3050 

www.first5sanmateo.org 

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COMMISSION MEETING 

HOW TO PARTICIPATE  

▪ Commission and others, we recommend to be on the call Monday at 3:40 PM so
we can test prior to the 4 PM meeting start time and ensure that you have
connection.

▪ Please note that public is attending this meeting and they may join early so
please keep that in mind

▪ Be sure to mute your microphone during the meeting until called upon to speak;
and

▪ If you plan to join by phone, please let Myra Cruz or other First 5 Staff know the
phone number in advance so we can identify you to the Commission, and we will
rename your masked phone number to show your name instead. We highly
encourage that you join early so we can make this change, OR you can email us
your phone # ahead of time to ecruz@smcgov.org .

• JOINING VIA ONLINE:

For those attending the meeting on the Zoom videoconference, (click the link

listed on the agenda), we will use the “raise hand” feature in order to organize

any public comments. During the general public comment period, and for each

item on the Regular Agenda, F5SMC Staff, will ask those members of the public

who wish to comment to click the “raise hand” feature to raise your hand to speak

on that agenda item.

▪ JOINING BY PHONE:
The phone number is listed on the agenda.

Press *6 to mute and unmute your phone

Press *9 if would like to speak. This would notify the staff that you would like to

speak.

Please note that members of the public must wait for the prompt in connection 

with each Agenda item before using the raise hand function.  For example, you 

cannot raise your hand at the beginning of the meeting for an Agenda item that is 

later in the meeting. 

When you hear your name called, F5SMC Staff, will unmute your mic to begin 

speaking.  You may only speak once per agenda item. 

mailto:ecruz@smcgov.org
mailto:ecruz@smcgov.org
mailto:eroberts@smcgov.org
mailto:eroberts@smcgov.org


 
  1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 405 

San Mateo, CA  94402-3050  
first5sanmateo.org 

                                                    
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

* PUBLIC HEARING MEETING NOTICE* 

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY (F5SMC) 

COMMISSION MEETING 

 
As authorized by Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, the 
meeting will be held via teleconferencing with members of the Commission attending from 
separate remote locations.  The meeting will be held and live cast from the following 
location where members of the public shall have the right to observe and offer public 
comment:   

DATE: Monday, May 24, 2021 

          TIME:     4:00 PM – 6:00 PM 

          Join Zoom Meeting          
Online: 
https://smcgov.zoom.us/j/91722273690?pwd=Y3ppL1NseGlxZ1BZd3VVL2c2Y1B 
TUT09 
Phone:  US: +1 669 900 6833   
Passcode: 990994, Webinar ID: 917 2227 3690 

     
This altered format is in observance of the recommendation by local officials that certain 
precautions be taken, including social distancing, to address the threat of COVID-19.   

 

AGENDA  

Call to Order and Preliminary Business 

1 Roll Call 

 
4:00 PM 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2 Public Comment 

3 Action to Set Agenda for May 24, 2021 Meeting and Approve Consent Agenda 
Items 

(This item is to set the final consent and regular agenda, and for the approval of the items listed on the 
consent agenda.  All items on the consent agenda are approved by one action.)  

4 Commission Announcements 4:05 PM 

 
Discussion Items  

5 Race and Equity Discussion 
Facilitators:  Adene Sacks & Johnny Manzon Santos, With/In Collaborative 4:10 PM 

6 Presentation: 2020 California Children’s Score Card  
by Ted Lempert, President, Children Now 5:10 PM 

Action Items 

7 Approval of First 5 San Mateo County Policies and Bylaws for FY 2021 – 2022 
(See Attachment 7) 

5:30 PM 
 

https://smcgov.zoom.us/j/91722273690?pwd=Y3ppL1NseGlxZ1BZd3VVL2c2Y1BTUT09
https://smcgov.zoom.us/j/91722273690?pwd=Y3ppL1NseGlxZ1BZd3VVL2c2Y1BTUT09


 
  1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 405 

San Mateo, CA  94402-3050  
first5sanmateo.org 

                                                    
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

8 Approval of F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Draft Budget and the Use of Ending Fund 
Balance (Reserves*) to Fund F5SMC’s FY 2021 – 22 Adopted Budget 
(See Attachment 8) 

5:35 PM 

 
Informational Items 

9 Report of the Executive Director 
(See Attachment 9) 

5:40 PM 

10 Committee Updates 
(See Attachment 10) 

5:50 PM 

11 Adjournment 6:00 PM 

  
* Public Comment: This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Commission on any 
Commission-related matters that are as follows: 1) Not otherwise on this meeting agenda; 2) Listed 
on the Consent Agenda; 3) Executive Director’s Report on the Regular Agenda; or 4) 
Subcommittee Members’ Reports on the Regular Agenda.  Public comments on matters not listed 
above shall be heard at the time the matter is called.   
 
Persons wishing to address a particular agenda item should speak during that agenda item. 
Speakers are customarily limited to two minutes, but an extension may be provided to you at the 
discretion of the Commission Chair. 
 
The identified times are approximate and are intended to serve as a guide to the public and all First 
5 meeting attendees regarding the approximate start times for any one section of the Agenda. The 
actual start and end times for an agenda item may differ from the noted times. 
 
Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular Commission 
meeting are available for public inspection.  Those records that are distributed less than 72 hours 
prior to the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all 
members, or a majority of the members of the Commission.  The documents are also available on 
the First 5 Internet Web site at www.first5.smcgov.org. 
 
Individuals who require special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation to 
participate in this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternative format for the 
agenda, meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be distributed at the meeting, 
should contact Myra Cruz, by 12 Noon on Friday, May 21, 2021 at 650.372.9500 x232 and/or 
ecruz@smcgov.org. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable the Commission to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting, the materials related to it, and 
your ability to comment. 

 

http://first5.smcgov.org/


  Attachment 3 

  Page 1 of 1 

 
 

First 5 San Mateo County Commission Meeting 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

May 24, 2021 
 
All items on the consent agenda are approved by one roll call motion unless a request is 
made at the beginning of the meeting that an item be withdrawn or transferred to the 
regular agenda. Any item on the regular agenda may be transferred to the consent 
agenda. 
 

 

 

3.1 Approval of the April 26, 2021 Commission Meeting Minutes  

(See Attachment 3.1) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment 3.1 
 

Page 1 | 4 

 

First 5 San Mateo County (F5SMC) 
COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

April 26, 2021 
Via Zoom 

 
 Call to Order & Roll Call  

1. Roll Call  

Commission Members: Alexis Becerra, Ken Cole, Rosanne Foust, Pam Frisella, Carole Groom,  

Nancy Magee, Sandra Phillips-Sved, Louise Rogers  

Ryan Teh (Youth Commissioner) 
 

 

 Absent:    Neel Patel 
 

Staff: Kitty Lopez, Michelle Blakely, Khanh Chau, Jenifer Clark, Emily Roberts, Mey 

Winata, Myra Cruz 

 

County Counsel:  Monali Sheth 

 

A quorum was present. Commissioner Rogers called the meeting to order at 4:00 PM; roll call was taken.  

 

2. Public Comments: None 
 

3. Action to Set Agenda for April 26, 2021 Meeting and Approve Consent Agenda Items 

MOTION:  FRISELLA/ SECOND: MAGEE 

AYES:  BECERRA, COLE, FOUST, FRISELLA, MAGEE, PHILLIPS-SVED, ROGERS 

NOES:  NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 
 

Motion approved. 

 

4. Commission Announcement: None 

 
 

5. Storytelling: First 5 Work/Impact 

Lizeth Hernandez, Education Director of Puente de la Costa Sur, shared how their agency helped families 

during COVID-19 pandemic and the recent fire evacuations in Pescadero.  Puente provided child care 

services via a co-op parent model, provided COVID-19 testing, food services, financial relief services, and 

quarantine shelter for residents who tested positive. Hernandez also shared a parent story. 

 

Commission shared comments.    

 

6. Presentation: Mission Asset Fund 

Jose Quinonez, Founder & CEO of Mission Asset Fund (MAF), shared information regarding MAF and 

highlighted the following: 

o Partnership approaches with government and private partners as well as local partners.  

o Key funders and outreach partners such as County of San Mateo, Legal Aid Society of San Mateo 

County, and Samaritan House. 

o SMC Immigrant Relief Fund Update Data such as: 

▪ 12,432 Approved Applications  

▪ Percentages of grant recipients with children under 5 i.e., 14% (Household of 2), 30% Household 

of 3, 30% (Household of 4), 26% (Household of 5+). 

▪ The ripple of effects of COVID such as 87% of families with COVID diagnoses had trouble taking 

care of their children. 



Attachment 3.1 
 

Page 2 | 4 

 

o Testimonial from a grant recipient. 

 

The Commission made comments. 

 

The PowerPoint Presentation can be found on the F5SMC’s website, April 26, 2021 Commission Meeting 

Presentations. 

 

7. Presentation: First 5 California and First 5 San Mateo County Home Visiting Initiative 

Michelle Blakely, F5SMC’s Deputy Director, provided an overview and update on the First 5 California (F5CA) 

and First 5 SMC Home Visiting Initiative (HVI). Blakely highlighted the following: 

o Brief background of HVI.  

o The objective of HVI is to help counties create a sustainable, unified system that supports families with 

the home visiting services they need and maximize available funding to serve more families. 

o Budget and terms details such as F5CA awarded $200k for a two-year term starting July 1, 2020 to 

June 30, 2022 and it would require a 1:1 match. The fund is for system coordination supports such as 

data collection activities, parent incentives, mini-grants/stipends to partners, and consultation services. 

o Partners and timeline. 

o Action Plan development that focuses on the improvement charter, barriers, and solutions. 

o Goals of the Action Plan such as:  

▪ expanding access to home visiting and other family support services, as needed, to help 

families recover from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic 

▪ strengthening coordination and alignment across home visiting and family support agencies to 

address the effects of the pandemic on family support systems 

▪ advancing family-centered and trauma-informed practices within home visiting and family 

support services. 

o Emerging themes and activities. 

o Next steps include the release of the Environmental Scan RFQ, developing partner MOU’s, outreach 

to additional partners and parent groups, and implementing the Action Plan. 

Commission asked questions and made comments. 

The PowerPoint Presentation can be found on the F5SMC’s website, April 26, 2021 Commission Meeting 

Presentations. 

 

 

Public Comments:  None 

 

8. Presentation: Early Identification and Intervention Environmental Scan in San Mateo County 

Emily Roberts, F5SMC’s Health and Development Specialist, and Cheryl Oku of Cheryl Oku Consulting, co-

presented the Early Identification and Intervention (EII) Environmental Scan in San Mateo County. They 

highlighted the following: 

o Context and rationales. 

o Stakeholders and inputs from mandated agencies (GGRC, SELPA, HPSM), community-based 

providers, regional and statewide partners (First 5 Alameda, First 5 Center for Children’s Policy), and 

primary and secondary data sources.  The family perspective is represented through family-serving 

providers and not direct family input. 

o The full report is included in the packet including the executive summary, the EII System in San Mateo 

County, barriers to EII, and opportunities to reduce barriers and improve the EII System. 

o Components of the early identification and early intervention. 

o Primary barriers and opportunities. 

https://first5sanmateo.org/about/commission/commission-meeting/
https://first5sanmateo.org/about/commission/commission-meeting/
https://first5sanmateo.org/about/commission/commission-meeting/
https://first5sanmateo.org/about/commission/commission-meeting/


Attachment 3.1 
 

Page 3 | 4 

 

o Next steps which includes sharing the Scan with System Change for Children with Special Needs 

Groups and First 5 Center for Children’s Policy blog and planning for action and advocacy such as 

development of local action plan and partnership with First 5 Center for Children’s Policy. 

 

Roberts asked the Commission for input on additional steps and partnerships to move this work forward. 

 

Commission provided comments and asked questions. 

 

The PowerPoint Presentation can be found on the F5SMC’s website, April 26, 2021 Commission Meeting 

Presentations. 

 
 

9. Approval of Recommended Awards for Oral Health Access and Utilization Procurement Process and 

Authorization to Negotiate and Execute the following Contracts:  

Emily Roberts presented Oral Health Access & Utilization Recommendations and highlighted the following: 

o Brief background research and the COVID-19 implications of oral health for disadvantaged and 

underprivileged children. 

o Purposes are to support strategies that improve young children’s utilization of preventative oral health 

and advocate for policies and practices that increase dental utilization for children on Medi-Cal. 

Emphasis on short-term strategies that can be implemented during the pandemic 

o F5SMC encouraged proposals for strategies that address priority issues, elevate family-centered 

partnerships, promote awareness and alignment, and build toward sustainability. 

o Total amount available for recommendation is up to $250,000 for May 2021 – June 30, 2022. F5SMC 

received five proposals with requests totaling $730,000. 

o Strengths of the recommended portfolio include shovel-ready, geographically complimentary direct 

service delivery, and established cross-sector partnerships 

o Review panel reviewed the proposals, and they unanimously recommended to fund the following: 

 

Agency Project Name Amount 

Children Now Improving Access to Oral Health for 
Children (0-5) Enrolled in Medi-Cal 

$20,000 

Ravenswood Family Health 
Network 

Preventative Oral Health Project $160,000 

Sonrisas Dental Health, Inc. Early Childhood Oral Health 
Programming 

$70,000 

 

Public Comments:  

Yogita Thakur, Chief Dental Officer of Ravenswood Family Health Center, and Bonnie Jue, Community 

Engagement Director of Sonrisas Dental Health, thanked the Commission for their approval consideration. 

 

A) Award to Children Now in the Amount of $20,000, Contract Term Effective May 7, 2021 through 
June 30, 2022, Based on Recommendation by F5SMC Staff and Review Panel; Direction to Staff to 
Conduct Contract Negotiations and Execute Contract Regarding the Same 

 

MOTION:  GROOM/ SECOND: FRISELLA 

AYES: BECERRA, COLE, FRISELLA, GROOM, MAGEE, PHILLIPS-SVED, ROGERS 

  TEH (Youth Commissioner) Concurred with the Commission 

NOES: NONE 

https://first5sanmateo.org/about/commission/commission-meeting/
https://first5sanmateo.org/about/commission/commission-meeting/


Attachment 3.1 
 

Page 4 | 4 

 

ABSTAIN: NONE 
 

Motion approved. 

 

B) Award to Ravenswood Family Health Network in the Amount of $160,000, Contract Term Effective 
May 7, 2021 through June 30, 2022, Based on Recommendation by F5SMC Staff and Review Panel; 
Direction to Staff to Conduct Contract Negotiations and Execute Contract Regarding the Same 
 

MOTION:    FRISELLA/ SECOND: GROOM 

AYES:   BECERRA, COLE, FRISELLA, GROOM, MAGEE, PHILLIPS-SVED 

    TEH (Youth Commissioner) Concurred with the Commission 

RECUSED:   ROGERS 

NOES:   NONE 

ABSTAIN:   NONE 
 

Motion approved. 

 

C) Award to Sonrisas Dental Health Inc. in the Amount of $70,000, Contract Term Effective May 7, 
2021 through June 30, 2022, Based on Recommendation by F5SMC Staff and Review Panel; 
Direction to Staff to Conduct Contract Negotiations and Execute Contract Regarding the Same 

 

MOTION:    GROOM/ SECOND: BECERRA 

AYES:   BECERRA, COLE, FRISELLA, GROOM, PHILLIPS-SVED, ROGERS 

    TEH (Youth Commissioner) Concurred with the Commission 

RECUSED:   MAGEE 

NOES:   NONE 

ABSTAIN:   NONE 
 

Motion approved. 

 

10. Executive Director’s Report 

The Executive Director’s written report was included in the April 26, 2021 Commission Meeting Packet. Kitty 

Lopez highlighted that she and Michelle Blakely will be attending the First Association Advocacy Day on April 

27, 2021. They will be talking with our Legislative Members to advocate for children and to discuss vital issues 

and initiatives both locally and throughout the state. 

 

Commissioner Rogers complemented Kitty’s letter sent to early childhood educators on March 5, 2021. 

 

11. Committee Updates 

The Committee Updates written report was included in the April 26, 2021 Commission Meeting Packet. 

Program, Operations, and Planning Committee: Commissioner Magee shared that the Committee met and 

had a great discussion on the items that were presented today.   

 

 

Commissioner Rogers adjourned the meeting at 5:58 PM. 

https://first5sanmateo.org/about/commission/commission-meeting/
https://first5sanmateo.org/about/commission/commission-meeting/


  Attachment 7 

Page 1 of 3 
 

DATE:  May 24, 2021  
 
TO:  First 5 San Mateo County Commission  
 
FROM: Kitty Lopez, Executive Director 
  
RE: Approval of the First 5 San Mateo County Policies and Bylaws for FY 2021-22 
 
 

ACTION REQUESTED 
Approval of the First 5 San Mateo County Policies and Bylaws for FY 2021-22 
 

BACKGROUND 

Mandate Policies: The First 5 San Mateo County (F5SMC) Commission annually reviews and 
approves the Commission’s policies to ensure compliance with legislative mandates and other 
administrative processes and to strengthen F5SMC’s internal controls for operations.  Currently, 
there are seven (7) policies, four (4) of which are in direct response to the mandates outlined in the 
2006 Assembly Bill 109 (Chan) and 2006 Senate Bill 35 (Florez). These four policies include: 
Contracting and Procurement, Conflict of Interest, Salary and Benefits, and Administrative Costs.  All 
seven (7) policies were reviewed and approved by the Commission on May 18, 2020. 

 
Bylaws: On May 18, 2020, the Commission reviewed and approved First 5 San Mateo County’s 
Amended Bylaws.  
 
The policies and bylaws were reviewed and recommended for approval at the May 10, 2021 Finance 
and Administration Committee Meeting.  

 

UNCHANGED POLICIES 

The following policies remain unchanged:  

▪ Conflict of Interest Policy (Attachment 7B) 

▪ Salary and Benefits Policy (Attachment 7C) 

▪ Supplantation Policy (Attachment 7E) 

▪ Delegation of Authority to Executive Director to Take Action to Support or Oppose Legislation 
or Other Initiatives (Attachment 7F) 

▪ Amended Event Sponsorship Policy (Attachment 7G) 

 
CHANGED POLICIES 

The following policies are amended:  

▪ Amended Contracting and Procurement Policy (Attachment 7A) 
 
Current: 
D. The Executive Director of First 5 San Mateo County is authorized to approve and execute 
service agreements, memorandums of understanding and/or contracts with a total obligation 
amount less than or equal to $25,000. After receiving direction to proceed from the 
Commission Chair, the Executive Director has signature authority to approve all service 
agreements, memorandums of understanding, and/or contracts with a total obligation amount 
between $25,000 and $50,000 on behalf of the Commission.   

        



  Attachment 7 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Amended: 
D. The Executive Director of First 5 San Mateo County is authorized to approve and execute 
service agreements, memorandums of understanding and/or contracts with a total obligation 
amount less than or equal to $25,000. After receiving direction to proceed from the 
Commission Chair, the Executive Director has signature authority to approve all service 
agreements, memorandums of understanding, and/or contracts with a total obligation amount 
between $25,000 and $50,000 on behalf of the Commission.   

 

▪ Amended Administrative Costs Policy (Attachment 7D) 

Current: 
III. MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS AS A PERCENTAGE OF THE 

OPERATING BUDGET 
The Commission will monitor actual Administrative costs so that, in any one year, 
Administrative costs do not exceed 12% of the Commission’s annual operating budget. 

 

 Amended: 
III. MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS AS A PERCENTAGE OF THE 

OPERATING BUDGET 
 
 The Commission will monitor actual Administrative costs so that, in any one year, 

Administrative costs do not exceed 12% 15% of the Commission’s annual operating 
budget.  The Commission may increase or decrease the maximum allowable 
Administration percentage as changing fiscal or legislative circumstances require. 

 
Current: 
IV. MONITORING 

 
 The Administrative costs’ percentage will be monitored quarterly by the Commission’s 

fiscal staff and reported to the Executive Director and Finance Committee.  In the event 
that Administrative costs exceed 12% of the operating budget, the Commission will 
review and approve a corrective action plan to achieve the desired percentage.   

 
Amended: 
IV. MONITORING 

 
 The Administrative costs’ percentage will be monitored quarterly by the Commission’s 

fiscal staff and reported to the Executive Director and Finance Committee.  In the event 
that Administrative costs exceed 12% 15% of the operating budget, the Commission will 
review and approve a corrective action plan to achieve the desired percentage.   

 

▪ Amended Bylaws (Attachment 7H) 

Current: 
ARTICLE X (Procedures for Conduct of Business) 
1. Executive Director Signature Authority: 

The Executive Director shall have such signature authority to approve and execute service 
agreements, memorandums of understanding and/or contracts up to $25,000.  After 
receiving direction to proceed from the Commission Chair, the Executive Director has 
signature authority to approve all service agreements, memorandums of understanding, 
and/or contracts above $25,000 and up to $50,000 on behalf of the Commission.  



  Attachment 7 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Amended: 
ARTICLE X (Procedures for Conduct of Business) 
1. Executive Director Signature Authority: 

The Executive Director shall have such signature authority to approve and execute service 
agreements, memorandums of understanding and/or contracts up to $25,000.  After 
receiving direction to proceed from the Commission Chair, the Executive Director has 
signature authority to approve all service agreements, memorandums of understanding, 
and/or contracts above $25,000 and up to $50,000 on behalf of the Commission.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
The amendments to Contracting and Procurement Policy and the Administrative Costs Policy have no 
fiscal impact to the F5SMC’s annual budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the First 5 San Mateo County Policies and Bylaws for FY 2021-22.  



   
 

Attachment 7A 

  Page 1 of 2 
 

 

  

 
SUBJECT:   AMENDED CONTRACTING AND PROCUREMENT POLICY 
 
PURPOSE: To facilitate compliance with Health and Safety Code Section 130140(d)(4)(B) 

requiring the county commission to adopt, in a public hearing, a contract 
and procurement policy that is consistent with certain state law provisions. 
And, to comply with Health and Safety Code Section §130151(b)(1), which 
requires that the contract and procurement policy contains provisions to 
ensure that grants and contracts are consistent with the commission’s 
strategic plan. 

 
To facilitate compliance with the Standards and Procedures for Audits of 
California Counties participating in the California Children and Families 
Program issued by the California State Controller, March 2006. 

 
 
Part   I.  STATEMENT OF POLICIES 

  
 The First 5 San Mateo County Commission (“First 5 San Mateo County” or the 

“Commission”) and staff will comply with State law in all matters regarding 
Commission contracting and procurement to the extent applicable to the 
Commission, including ensuring that contracting and procurement are consistent 
with Article 7 (commencing with Section 54201) of Chapter 5 of Part 1 of Division 
2 of Title 5 of the Government Code, Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 2000) 
of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code, Section 3410 of the Public 
Contract Code, and Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 22150) of Part 3 of 
Division 2 of the Public Contract Code.   

 
 When purchasing food, First 5 San Mateo County will give preference to United 

States-grown produce and United States processed foods when there is a choice 
and it is economically feasible to do so. 

 
 If fitness and quality are equal, First 5 San Mateo County will purchase recycled 

products, as defined in Section 12200 of the Public Contract Code, instead of non-
recycled products whenever recycled products are available at the same or a 
lesser total cost than non-recycled items. 

 
In accordance with Section 130140 and Section 130105 of the Health and Safety 
Code,   First 5 San Mateo County has autonomy to expend moneys from the trust 
fund only for the purposes as described in the Commission’s approved Strategic 
Plan.  

 
 

Part   II.  CONTRACTING & GRANT PROCESSES  

A. First 5 San Mateo County shall use a competitive selection, negotiation and 
approval process (“Request for Proposal Process” or “RFP Process”) 
whereby potential contractors and/or grantees may submit applications for 
Commission funding.  Use of the RFP Process is intended to ensure that 

 



   
 

Attachment 7A 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

all qualified contractors and/or grantees are given an opportunity to be 
considered a service provider to the Commission. 

 
No person shall be excluded from participation in, denied benefits of, or be 
subject to discrimination under this process on the basis of their race, color, 
religion, national origin, age, sex, sexual orientation, pregnancy, childbirth 
or related conditions, medical condition, mental or physical disability or 
veteran’s status.  The RFP Process may only be waived by the 
Commission upon a finding that it would be in the best interests of the 
Commission.  

 
B. In addition to particular criteria are important and appropriate to the 

project/grant, the criteria for choosing the contractor and/or grantee may 
include and may include: 

• Experience of the agency and specific staff assigned to complete the 
work, including description of experience with similar projects 

• Proposed methodology, work plan and timeline to complete the scope 
of work  

• Proposed cost to complete the work 

• Payment terms (when payment is due to the contractor and/or grantee 
throughout the timeframe of the contract) 

• Start date and completion date of the work/service. 
 
Once the Commission has selected the contractor(s) and/or grantee(s) that 
can best perform the necessary work, Commission staff will negotiate the 
terms of the contract in accordance with the Commission’s approval for 
such services. 

   
C. The Commission shall approve and execute all service agreements, 

memorandums of understanding, and/or contracts with a total obligation 
amount that exceeds $50,000.   Any related contract amendment shall also 
be approved and executed by the Commission. 

 
D. The Executive Director of First 5 San Mateo County is authorized to 

approve and execute service agreements, memorandums of 
understanding and/or contracts with a total obligation amount less than or 
equal to $25,000.  The Executive Director has signature authority to 
approve all service agreements, memorandums of understanding, and/or 
contracts with a total obligation amount between $25,000 and $50,000 on 
behalf of the Commission.  In the event of an emergency in which the 
Executive Director is unable to sign and execute service agreements, 
memorandums of understanding and/or contracts, the Deputy Director will 
have signature authority, after consultation with the Commission Chair. 

 

E. Any service agreements, memorandums of understanding, and/or 
contracts that do not use or otherwise substantively amend the standard 
San Mateo County template agreement will be reviewed by County 
Counsel.  Approval must be obtained by County Counsel prior to 
finalization. 



            

 
Attachment 7B 

       Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:   CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
 
PURPOSE: To facilitate compliance with Health and Safety Code Section 130140(d)(4)(A) 

requiring the county commission to adopt, in a public hearing, a policy consistent with 
state and local law regarding conflict of interest of the commission members. 

 
  To facilitate compliance with the Standards and Procedures for Audits of California 

Counties participating in the California Children and Families Program issued by the 
California State Controller, March 2006. 

 
 
  
PART I.   CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE – GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 87100 

A. The First 5 San Mateo County Commission (“First 5 San Mateo County” or the 
“Commission”) has a Conflict of Interest Code, which has been approved by the 
San Mateo County Board of Supervisors.  Pursuant to Section 87306.5 of the 
Government Code, First 5 San Mateo County will review that Conflict of Interest 
Code biennially. First 5 San Mateo County has designated the following positions 
in its Code: Commissioners, Executive Director, Financial Analyst, and 
Consultants (when applicable).   

 

B. Form 700 filing.  All individuals holding positions designated by the Conflict of 
Interest Code shall file the Form 700 of the California Fair Political Practices 
Commission, when assuming office, annually thereafter, and when leaving office 
as required by regulation. 

 
C. The Commission shall continue to have a conflict of interest code in effect at all 

times. 
 
 
PART II. GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 1090, et seq. 

First 5 San Mateo County shall continue to conduct its business at all regular and 
special meetings of the Commission in accordance with the provisions of Government 
Code sections 1090, et seq., hereby incorporated by reference. 
 
Pursuant to Section 1091.3 of the Government Code, First 5 San Mateo County 
Commissioners will recuse themselves from making, participating in making, or in any 
way attempting to use their official position to influence a decision on an agreement 
when the agreement directly relates to services to be provided by the member or the 
entity the member represents or financially benefits the member or the entity the 
member represents. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



            

 
Attachment 7B 

       Page 2 of 3 

 

PART III. GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 1125, et seq. (INCOMPATIBLE ACTIVITIES)  

The Commission shall continue to conduct its operations consistent with Government 
Code Section 1125, et seq.  Except as provided in Sections 1128 and 1129 of the 
Government Code, First 5 San Mateo County officers and employees shall not 
engage in any employment, activity, or enterprise for compensation which is 
inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or inimical to their duties as a First 5 San 
Mateo County Commission officer or employee or with the duties, functions, or 
responsibilities of their appointing power or the agency by which they are employed.   
 
First 5 San Mateo County officers and employees shall not engage in any outside 
employment, activity, or enterprise if it: (1) involves the use for private gain or 
advantage of First 5 San Mateo County time, facilities, equipment and supplies; or the 
badge, uniform, prestige, or influence of First 5 San Mateo County office or 
employment or, (2) involves receipt or acceptance by the officer or employee of any 
money or other consideration from anyone other than First 5 San Mateo County for 
the performance of an act which the officer or employee, if not performing such act, 
would be required or expected to render in the regular course or hours of First 5 San 
Mateo County employment or as a part of his or her duties as a First 5 San Mateo 
County officer or employee or, (3) involves the performance of an act in other than his 
or her capacity as a First 5 San Mateo County officer or employee which act may later 
be subject directly or indirectly to the control, inspection, review, audit, or enforcement 
of any other officer or employee or the agency by which he or she is employed, or (4) 
involves the time demands as would render performance of his or her duties as a 
First 5 San Mateo County officer or employee less efficient. 
 
Further, the incompatibility rules of the County of San Mateo, particularly the 
provisions of Section 2.75.060 of the Ordinance Code of the County of San Mateo, 
shall be, and are hereby adopted as the rules applicable to the First 5 San Mateo 
County Commissioners. 
 
Further, each employee and officer of the Commission will be provided a copy of this 
policy.  Engaging in incompatible activities will subject employees and officers to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination or removal from the Commission 
(whichever is applicable).  Any disciplinary action related to violation of this policy will 
be conducted in accordance with the Commission’s general disciplinary processes, 
which provide the ability to contest imposition of discipline. 
 
 

PART IV REPORTING A CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

When a Commissioner first becomes aware of a conflict of interest or potential conflict 
of interest regarding a matter before the Commission or Committee, he or she must 
notify First 5 San Mateo County’s legal counsel, the Executive Director and the 
chairperson of the Commission or the Committee.  The facts of the conflict of interest 
will be recorded in the minutes of the Commission or Committee meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



            

 
Attachment 7B 

       Page 3 of 3 

First 5 San Mateo County 
 
 

List of Designated Positions in the First 5 San Mateo County 
and Financial Disclosure Categories 

 
Each person holding any position listed below must file statements disclosing the kinds of financial 
interest shown for the designated employee’s position.  Statements must be filed at the times and on 
the forms prescribed by law.  Failure to file statements on time may result in penalties including but 
not limited to late fines. 
 

Designated Employees    Disclosure Category 
 
Commission Member             1,2,3,4 
Executive Director              1,2,3,4 
Consultants*           1,2,3,4   
              
 
*The Executive Director, after consultation with the County Counsel, shall review the duties and 
authority of all consultants retained by the Commission. Those consultants who, within the meaning 
of Section 18700 (a)(2) of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are required to file statements 
of economic interests, shall do so.  During each calendar year, First 5 San Mateo County shall 
maintain a list of such consultants for public inspection in the same manner and location as this 
Conflict of Interest Code.  Nothing herein excuses any consultant from any other provision of the 
Conflict of Interest Code, specifically those dealing with disqualification. 
 
Disclosure Categories 
 
Category 1.  A designated official or employee assigned to category 1 is required to disclose direct 
or indirect investments in any business entity that may foreseeably be affected materially by any 
decision made or participated in by the designated official or employee by virtue of his or her 
position. 
 
Category 2.  A designated official or employee assigned to category 2 is required to disclose 
interests in any real property that may foreseeably be affected materially by any decision made or 
participated in by the designated official or employee by virtue of his or her position. 
 
Category 3.   A designated official or employee assigned to category 3 is required to disclose any 
source of income that may foreseeably be affected materially by any decision made or participated 
in by the designated official or employee by virtue of his or her position. 
 
Category 4.   A designated official or employee assigned to category 4 is required to disclose any 
business entity in which the designated official or employee is a director, officer, partner, trustee, 
employee or holds any position of management that may foreseeably be affected materially by any 
decision made or participated in by the designated official or employee by virtue of his or her 
position 
 



     
  Attachment 7C 

  Page 1 of 1 

    

 

 

 
 
SUBJECT:   SALARY AND BENEFITS POLICY 
 
PURPOSE: To facilitate compliance with Health and Safety Code Section 130140(d)(6) 

requiring the county commission to adopt, in a public hearing, policies and 
processes establishing the salaries and benefits of employees of the county 
commission.   

 
 To facilitate compliance with the Standards and Procedures for Audits of 

California Counties Participating in the California Children and Families Program 
issued by the California State Controller, March 2006. 

 
 

I. STATEMENT OF POLICY 

As required by Health and Safety Code Section 130140(d)(6), salaries and benefits 
shall conform with established First 5 San Mateo County Commission and San 
Mateo County government policies. 
 

II. SALARY AND BENEFITS POLICIES AND PROCESSES  

The San Mateo County Board of Supervisors created the First 5 San Mateo County 
Commission in March 1999, Ordinance No. 3889.  As an agency of the County, the 
First 5 San Mateo County Commission complies with the salaries and benefits 
policies and procedures that are applicable to all Boards and Commissions in the 
County, including: 
 

• The Memorandum of Understanding between County of San Mateo and the 
applicable union that establishes the salaries for each job classification, as 
may be amended from time to time; and 

• County Resolutions that provide salaries and related matters for exempt 
management, confidential and other unrepresented employees, as may be 
amended from time to time. 

  
Employee hiring, termination, payroll, pay increases and benefits are processed 
through the San Mateo County Employee and Personnel Services Department and 
the Controller’s Office.   

 
 

 



Attachment 7D 
 

 

   Page 1 of 2 

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
SUBJECT:      ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS POLICY (Amended) 
 

• Categorizing Administrative costs, Program costs, and Evaluation costs  
 

• Defining Administrative costs. 
 

• Determining the maximum allowable Administration costs as a percentage of 
the commission’s total operating budget. 
 

• Monitoring the Administrative cost percentage to ensure the actual 
Administrative costs do not exceed the maximum rate adopted by the 
commission. 

 
PURPOSE: To facilitate compliance with Health and Safety Code Section 130140(d)(5) 

requiring the county commission to adopt, in a public hearing, a limit on the 
percentage of the county commission’s operating budget that may be spent on 
administrative functions.   

 
 To facilitate compliance with the Standards and Procedures for Audits of 

California Counties Participating in the California Children and Families Program 
issued by the California State Controller, March 2006. 

 
I. STATEMENT OF POLICY 

 
First 5 San Mateo County will consistently identify Administrative costs following the 
guidelines outlined in this policy and monitor the actual Administrative costs as a 
percentage of its annual operating budget.    

 
II. COST CATEGORIES 

 
All costs fall into one of three major categories: Administrative, Program, or 
Evaluation. Administrative costs are differentiated from Program costs and 
Evaluation costs in accordance with the guidelines provided through the Financial 
Management Guide1 of First 5 Association of California; its Cost Allocation and 
Administrative Cost 2 provide guidelines in categorizing and allocating costs. 
 

III. ADMINISTRATIVE COST DEFINITION  

                                                 
1 The Guide is a product of the California First 5 Association’s and the State Commission’s joint technical assistance 
effort and a direct result of a financial management assessment conducted by the Government Finance Officers 
Association (GFOA) in response to new legislation.   
 
2 Financial Management Guide, First 5 Association of California (the Fifth Edition, 2015) Cost Allocation (pages 36-
37); Administrative Cost, (page 61-65)  
 



Attachment 7D 
 

 

   Page 2 of 2 

   

 
Administrative costs: Costs incurred in support of the general management and 
administration of a First 5 Commission, for a common or joint purpose that benefits 
more than one cost objective (other than Evaluation and Program activities), and/or 
those costs not readily assignable to a specifically benefited cost objective.   

 
Administrative costs include all salaries, benefits, services, and supply costs not 
readily identifiable as costs of the Commission’s Evaluation or Program activities. 
Commission staff will adhere to the above definition for budgeting, accounting, and 
financial reporting processes. Staff utilizes certain codes for reporting processes to 
identify costs as Program, Evaluation, or Administration according to their nature. 
Except when there is information to determine a direct allocation of operating costs, 
shared operating costs/office expenses will be allocated by a systematic, valid and 
rational allocation methodology. The methodology will be reviewed annually and 
presented with the annual budget. 
 

III. MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS AS A PERCENTAGE OF THE 
OPERATING BUDGET 

 
The Commission will monitor actual Administrative costs so that, in any one year, 
Administrative costs do not exceed 15% of the Commission’s annual operating 
budget. The Commission may increase or decrease the maximum allowable 
Administration percentage as changing fiscal or legislative circumstances require. 

 
IV. MONITORING 

 
The Administrative costs’ percentage will be monitored quarterly by the 
Commission’s fiscal staff and reported to the Executive Director and Finance 
Committee.  In the event that Administrative costs exceed 15% of the operating 
budget, the Commission will review and approve a corrective action plan to achieve 
the desired percentage.  The Commission may increase or decrease the maximum 
allowable Administration percentage as changing fiscal or legislative circumstances 
require. 

  
 

 



 

Attachment 7E 

     

     Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 
SUBJECT: SUPPLANTATION POLICY 

 

PROHIBITING USE OF COMMISSION FUNDS TO SUPPLANT STATE OR LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT FUNDS 
 

PURPOSE: The purpose of the policy is to assure compliance with Proposition 10, adopted by 

the voters in 1998.  Revenue & Taxation Code Section 30131.4 provides, in part, 

that Proposition 10 funds shall be used only to supplement existing levels of 

service and not to fund existing levels of service.  It further provides that no money 

in the commission’s trust fund shall be used to supplant state or local general fund 

money for any purpose. 

 
 

POLICY:  

1.  No Commission funds shall be used to supplant state or local general fund money for any 
purpose.  Commission funds shall be used only to supplement existing levels of service and 
not to fund existing levels of service.  

 
2.  To that end, no Commission funds shall be granted or used for any existing project or 

program funded by state or local general funds unless the proponent demonstrates to the 
Commission’s satisfaction that the Commission’s funding will be used to improve the quality 
or quantity of an existing service, and not to supplant existing funding.   

 
3.  The prohibition on supplantation was intended to prevent state and local governments from 

shifting fiscal responsibility for ongoing public programs to the state and local commissions.  
The prohibition on supplantation does not refer to privately funded or federally funded 
programs.   Therefore, the prohibition applies only to programs and services currently or 
previously funded by state or local government general funds, and which are “existing” as 
defined below.   

 
4.  The prohibition on supplantation was not intended to prevent, stifle or discourage state or 

local government agencies from funding pilot programs, which provide valuable innovations 
and formation.  Therefore, the prohibition should not be interpreted to apply to pilot programs 
or services, as defined below.  

 
 

Definitions: 

Existing means, with respect to a level of service, a service that is in effect or operation at the 
time a request for funding is acted upon by the Commission, or at any time within the 12-month 
period preceding the Commission’s action. 
 
State general funds means funds which are received into the treasury of the State and not 
required by law to be credited to any other fund.1  
 

                                                      
1  See Gov. Code § 16300. 



 

Attachment 7E 

     

     Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Local government general funds means funds which are received into the treasury of the local 
government and not specially appropriated to any other fund.2 
 
Level of service includes both the quality and quantity of services. 
 
Pilot with respect to programs or services means those that are implemented on a temporary and 
limited basis in order to test and evaluate the effectiveness of the program, develop new 
techniques, or gather information.3 
 
Supplant shall be given its ordinary meaning, that is, “to take the place of.” 

 
 

Guidelines: 

1.  Every applicant must disclose in its application whether the program has received funding 
from other sources (whether local or state government, private, or federal) within the past 
three years, and as to any public funding, identify the law or program under which funding 
was received.  

 
2.  Any applicant that discloses that state or local government funding has been received for the 

proposed program or service within the last three years must also demonstrate to the 
Commission’s satisfaction: 

a)  That the program or service has not received state or local general funds within the 12 
month period preceding the Commission’s action, or  

 
b)  That, if received, such funds have not been reduced during the 12 month period 

preceding the Commission’s action, or 
 
c)  That the program or service was a pilot project, and 
 
d)  That the Commission’s funds will be used to augment or improve the existing level of 

service, either in terms of quantity or quality. 
 

3.  The Commission may require the applicant to provide any additional information regarding 
sources and uses of funds at any time.  Based upon all existing facts and circumstances, the 
Commission shall determine whether the proposal would violate this policy.  The 
Commission’s determination will be made as of the time a grant agreement is executed.  For 
multi-year contracts or commitments, the Commission reserves the right to re-examine its 
determination that its funds will not be used in violation of this policy. 

                                                      
2  See Gov. Code § 29301 
3  See Penal Code § 5058.1 



  Page 1 of 1 
 

Attachment 7F 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
SUBJECT:  DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO TAKE ACTION TO 

SUPPORT OR OPPOSE LEGISLATION OR OTHER INITATIVES  
 
PURPOSE:  On occasion, the Executive Director is approached with a time-sensitive request to 

sign a letter of support for (or opposition to) legislation or other initiatives related to 
First 5 San Mateo County Commission’s mission. This policy is intended to delegate 
authority to the Executive Director to take necessary action to provide that support 
(or opposition) consistent with the First 5 San Mateo County Commission’s mission 
when certain conditions are met.  

 
 
POLICY:  

The First 5 Commission hereby delegates its authority to the Executive Director to sign 
documents or other materials on behalf of First 5 San Mateo County Commission (“First 5 
San Mateo County” or the “Commission”), when all of the following conditions are met:  
 
1. The legislation or other initiative is directly related to, and consistent with  

First 5 San Mateo County’s mission. 
 

2. Because of time constraints, bringing the matter to the Commission at its next scheduled  
meeting is not practical. 
 

3. Calling a special meeting to address the matter is either not practical or not appropriate  
under the circumstances. 
 

4. The Executive Director has conferred with the Chair of the Commission and both the  
Executive Director and the Chair agree that: (a) the position that the Executive Director 
intends to take is consistent with the mission of First 5 San Mateo County; (b) bringing 
the matter to the Commission at is next scheduled meeting or at a special meeting is not 
practical or appropriate under the circumstances; and (c) taking the position without a 
vote of the Commission is appropriate under the circumstances. 
 

5. The Executive Director reports at the next regularly scheduled Commission meeting as 
part of the Executive Director’s Report any position taken pursuant to this policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  



Attachment 7G 

Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT: EVENT SPONSORSHIP POLICY 

PURPOSE: To provide support for events targeted at children prenatally to age 5 and their 
families in San Mateo County. 

POLICY: First 5 San Mateo County may provide sponsorship to an event and/or scholarships 
to parents or providers in the form of funding that meets the Event Sponsorship 
Eligibility Criteria 

First 5 San Mateo County (F5SMC) has a core strength and long history in developing partnerships 
and facilitating collaboration. Our vision of success for every child would not be possible without 
the collaboration of our partners throughout the County. 

This set of guidelines provides direction for potential community partners interested in receiving 
sponsorship for community events. The goal is to sponsor community events that broaden 
F5SMC’s reach into the community and focus on the following focus areas as defined in our 
strategic plan: 

• Healthy Children

• Resilient Families

• Quality Care and Education

Event Sponsorship Eligibility Criteria  
Parents or providers may request a sponsorship if the event meets the following criteria: 

• The event ties to one or more of the focus areas above and are consistent with the
Commission’s vision and mission.

• The event targets families/children prenatally to age 5, high priority populations or
communities as defined by F5SMC.

• The event takes place in San Mateo County.

• The event provides F5SMC with advertisement opportunity and/or includes F5SMC in
promotions prior to, and during the event (e.g., print, radio, web, and televised
advertisement and promotions).

• The event provides a booth space for F5SMC staff to participate during the event, if
appropriate.

• The requesting agency coordinates with F5SMC staff to ensure proper crediting policy and
general marketing is consistent with F5SMC standards and Style Guide whenever possible.

• The event is designated smoke free.

• The event is not used to lobby for or against or otherwise attempt to influence legislation.

• The event is not used for religious purposes.

• The event is not used for fundraising purposes.



 

Attachment 7G 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Event Sponsorship Award Amounts 

•   The Event Sponsorship Budget will be determined as part of the annual budget cycle 
preparation.     

•   Event Sponsorship requests up the amount of $5,000 or less are reviewed and approved by 
the Executive Director; approval is based on meeting the eligibility criteria and is contingent 
upon budget appropriations.  

 
Standards for Collaboration 

•   F5SMC will not endorse, directly or through implied endorsement, specific products, 
services, educational programs or enterprises. 

•   As a public agency, products developed in collaboration with F5SMC are in the public 
domain. 

 
Post Event Reporting 

•   Sponsorship recipient will provide F5SMC with event outcomes data including but not limited 
to: attendance and participation of other community agencies; attendance of children up to 
age 5 and their families; an overall description of the event highlighting the value of 
community collaboration and of First 5’s sponsorship investment. 

•   A representative from the requesting agency may also be asked to make a brief presentation 
at a F5SMC Commission Meeting. 

 
Organizations and businesses interested in the Event Sponsorship Program must submit the 
Sponsorship Request Form, which can be obtained from First 5 San Mateo County staff or 
downloaded at first5sanmateo.org. 
 
Requests must be received eight weeks prior to the proposed event date. Event Sponsorship 
Requests will be accepted on a continuous basis as long as funding is available.   
 
Submit Questions and/or Sponsorship Requests to: 
Myra Cruz 
1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 405 
San Mateo, CA 94402 
ecruz@smcgov.org 
 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwizhsLsus3UAhVS2WMKHfO3AngQFggpMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Ffirst5.smcgov.org%2F&usg=AFQjCNGjInarZ8URYwq92HKMae7kAdqc5A&sig2=ylWpuGuuSz_TW2PWmsANOA


Attachment 7H 
AMENDED 

 1 

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY COMMISSION 
BYLAWS  

Adopted May 2019 
 
 

ARTICLE I (Authority) 
 

These bylaws (“Bylaws”) are adopted by the First 5 San Mateo County Commission (the 
“Commission” or “F5SMC”) to establish rules for its proceedings.  The Commission is authorized 
by, and shall operate consistent with, the Children and Families First Act of 1998, as amended 
(the “State Act”), and Chapter 2.24 of the San Mateo County Ordinance Code, as amended (the 
“County Ordinance”). 
 
 
ARTICLE II (Vision, Mission, Outcomes and Status) 
 
The vision of the Commission is “Success for every child.” 
 
The mission of the Commission is to promote positive outcomes for young children and their 
families through strategic investments, community leadership, and effective partnerships.   
 
F5SMC adopted the following desired outcomes to guide its efforts in its  2020 - 2025 Strategic 
Plan: 

1. San Mateo County prioritizes young children and their families; 

2. Communities provide a safe and healthy environment for young children; 

3. Children have access to high-quality early care and education settings; 

4. Families feel connected to and supported by their community and are able to nurture 
their children’s health and development; 

5. Children have healthy attachments to their parents and caregivers; and 

6. Children have access to and are utilizing appropriate health care services to meet their 
health and  developmental needs. 

F5SMC is an agency of the County of San Mateo (the “County”) with independent authority over 
the Strategic Plan and the Local Trust Fund.  Obligations of F5SMC shall be the obligations 
solely of the Commission and shall not directly or indirectly be obligations of the County or any 
officials, employees or agents of the County.  The County shall not be liable for any act or 
omission of the Commission. 

 
 

ARTICLE III (Powers and Duties) 
 
The duties of the Commission shall be those proscribed in the State Act and the County 
Ordinance and may include the following: 



Attachment 7H 
AMENDED 

2 

• Adopt Strategic Plan for the support and improvement of early childhood improvement
within the County, consistent with the requirements of the State Act and any other
applicable state laws and County guidelines.

• At least annually, conduct a review of the Strategic Plan and revise the plan as may be
necessary or appropriate, and conduct at least one public hearing on the Commission’s
review of the plan before any revisions to the plan are adopted and submitted to the First
5 California Commission (the “State Commission”).

• Measure outcomes of funded programs through the use of applicable, reliable indicators
and review on a periodic basis as part of the public review of the Strategic Plan.

• Prepare and adopt an annual audit and report pursuant to Health and Safety Code
Section 130150, and conduct at least one public hearing prior to adopting any annual
audit or report.

• Review the State First 5 California Commission annual report at a public hearing.

• Adopt policies and procedures consistent with the requirements of the State Act.

• Establish one or more advisory committees to provide technical and professional
expertise and support for any purposes that will be beneficial in accomplishing the
purposes of the State Act.

• Enter into such contracts as necessary or appropriate to carry out the provisions and
purposes of the State Act or the County Ordinance.

ARTICLE IV (Commission Membership) 

The composition of the Commission, and the membership qualifications, terms, entitlement to 
compensation, and all other aspects of Commission membership shall be as proscribed by the 
County Ordinance or the State Act in the absence of an applicable provision of the County 
Ordinance.  

ARTICLE V (Conflicts of Interest Policy) 

The Commission shall by resolution adopt and may amend a Conflicts of Interest policy for the 
Commission as required by applicable law.  Any such policy, and any amendments thereto, shall 
be consistent with County policies and requirements. 

Each Commissioner shall file a statement disclosing reportable economic interests in 
accordance with the Political Reform Act of 1974 and the regulations of the Fair Political 
Practices Commission and the Commission’s Conflict of Interest Policy.   

ARTICLE VI (Officers) 

1. Officers:
A. Officers of the Commission shall be a Chair and Vice-Chair and such other officers as the 

Commission may from time to time provide.  The Chair, who shall be a Commissioner, 
shall preside over all business and meetings of the Commission, appoint chairs of 



Attachment 7H 
AMENDED 

 3 

standing and ad hoc committees, and exercise such other powers and perform such other 
duties as may be prescribed by the Commission.   

 

B. The Vice Chair shall be a Commissioner, and in the Chair’s absence or inability to act, 
shall preside at the meetings of the Commission.  If both the Chair and Vice-Chair will be 
absent or unable to act at a meeting at which a quorum of the Commission will be 
present, the Chair may in advance of said meeting appoint a Commissioner to preside at 
said meeting over all business of the Commission, appoint chairs of standing and ad hoc 
committees, and exercise such powers and perform such other duties of the Chair as may 
be prescribed by the Commission.   

 
2. Terms and Removal:   
Officers of the Commission shall be chosen annually through an election to be held at the last 
scheduled meeting of each calendar year, unless an earlier election is necessary because of a 
vacancy or vacancies on the Commission.  Officers shall serve from the date of their election 
until a successor is selected, or until an earlier removal or resignation.  

 
 

ARTICLE VII (Staffing) 
 

1. Executive Director:   
The Commission hires, evaluates, and terminates the Executive Director.  The Executive 
Director shall act under the authority of, and in accordance with the direction of the Commission. 

 
2.  Staff:   
The Executive Director hires, evaluates and terminates F5SMC Staff. 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII (Meetings) 
 

1.  Regular and Special Meetings:   
A. The Commission and its standing committee(s) shall be subject to the provisions of 

Chapter 9 (Commencing with Section 54950) of Part I, Division 2 Title 5 of the 
Government Code, relating to meetings of local agencies (the “Ralph M. Brown Act” 
or the “Brown Act”). 

 

B. The Commission shall meet regularly at times and places to be determined by the 
Commission. There shall be at least 4 meetings each calendar year, generally on 
the fourth (4th) Monday of the month.   

 

C. Special meetings may be called at a time and place designated by the Chair.  The 
Commission staff shall give notices of regular and special meetings in accordance 
with the Brown Act. 

 
2.  Open and Public:   
All meetings of the Commission shall be held in accordance with the Brown Act.  



Attachment 7H 
AMENDED 

 4 

 
3.  Quorum:   
A quorum is required to initiate the transaction of business at any regular or special meeting of 
the Commission.  A quorum is a majority of the seated members of the Commission.  A meeting 
at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the 
withdrawal of Commissioners, provided that any action taken is approved by at least four 
Commissioners. 
 
4.  Voting:  
Except as otherwise provided by these Bylaws, all official acts of the Commission require the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the Commissioners who are present and voting as long as the 
quorum requirements are met.  No official act shall be approved with less than the affirmative 
vote of four Commissioners. 
 
5. Recusals:  
A Commissioner shall recuse him or herself from making, participating in making, or in any way 
attempting to use his or her official position to influence a decision on a contract or grant where 
the contract or grant directly relates to services to be provided by that Commissioner or the 
entity that the Commissioner represents or financially benefits the Commissioner or the entity 
that he or she represents, or as otherwise required by applicable law or by the Conflict of 
Interest Policy of the Commission.    
 
6. Minutes:   
Commission staff shall prepare the minutes of each meeting of the Commission.  
 

 
ARTICLE IX (Committees) 

 
1. Advisory Committees: 
The Commission shall establish one or more advisory committees to provide technical and 
professional expertise and support for any purpose that will be beneficial in accomplishing the 
purpose of the State Act and of the Commission.  Advisory committees shall meet and shall 
make recommendations and reports as deemed necessary or appropriate.  

 
A. Early Childhood Evaluation Advisory Committee:    

The duties and responsibilities of this Committee shall be to advise the full 
Commission on issues related to planning and implementing the Commission’s 
research and evaluation activities; to hear the perspectives of F5SMC grantees on 
evaluation and data collection and utilization; to serve as the initial audience for 
research and evaluation findings; and to provide guidance to staff and evaluation 
contractors regarding presentation of results to the full Commission. 

 
2. Standing Committees and Appointment of Members:    
The Commission may establish standing and ad hoc committees and appoint members to those 
committees, wherever necessary.  The following standing committees have been established: 
the Finance and Administration Committee and the Program, Operations and Planning 
Committee.  

 



Attachment 7H 
AMENDED 

 5 

A. Finance and Administration Committee:    
The duties and responsibilities of the Finance and Administration Committee shall 
be to advise the Commission concerning the budget, administrative costs, savings, 
investments, fixed assets, long term financial plan, financial objectives, funding 
strategies and annual allocation plan, annual financial audit, and other tasks and 
issues as assigned by the Commission. 
 

B. Program, Operations and Planning Committee: 
The duties and responsibilities of the Program, Operations and Planning 
Committee shall be to advise the Commission concerning the  First 5 San Mateo 
County Strategic Plan, policies concerning programs to be implemented and 
supported under the Strategic Plan, community needs assessments, program 
evaluations and other tasks and issues as assigned by the Commission. 
 

  
3. Conflicts of Interest:     
Commission members shall abide by all applicable laws, policies and regulations governing 
conflicts of interest, including those adopted by this Commission, the Board of Supervisors and 
the State Commission.  

 
4. Committee Membership:   
Notwithstanding section 3 above, persons who are not members of the Commission, including 
other elected officials and public members, may be appointed to serve on any committee 
established by the Commission.  Unless otherwise provided, standing committee memberships 
shall be reviewed annually by either the Chair or the Commission as a whole. 

  
5. Meetings:   
Regular meetings of standing committees shall be held at times and places determined by the 
Commission. Special meetings may be held at any time and place as designated by the Chair 
of the Commission or the Chair of the Committee. A majority of the members of the committee 
shall constitute a quorum for that committee. 

 
6. Open and Public:   
All meetings of standing committees shall be held in accordance with the Brown Act.  
 
 
ARTICLE X (Procedures for Conduct of Business) 

 
1. Executive Director Signature Authority: 
The Executive Director shall have such signature authority to approve and execute service 
agreements, memorandums of understanding and/or contracts up to $25,000.  The Executive 
Director has signature authority to approve all service agreements, memorandums of 
understanding, and/or contracts above $25,000 and up to $50,000 on behalf of the 
Commission.  

 
2. Apply for Grants:   
All grants, gifts, or bequests of money made to or for the benefit of the Commission from public 
or private sources to be used for early childhood development programs shall be expended for 



Attachment 7H 
AMENDED 

 6 

the specific purpose for which the grant, gift, or bequest was made.  The amount of any such 
grant, gift, or bequest shall not be considered in computing the amount allocated and 
appropriated to the Commission by the State Board of Equalization.   

 
  



Attachment 7H 
AMENDED 

 7 

ARTICLES XI (Amendments) 
 

These Bylaws may be amended or repealed by the Commission at any duly-noticed regular or 
special meeting by a majority vote  of the Commissioners who are present and voting as long 
as the quorum requirements are met.  No amendment to or repeal of these Bylaws shall be 
approved with less than the affirmative vote of five Commissioners.  

 
 
 

DATE ADOPTED:  ____________________ 
 
 
 
SIGNED BY:  
 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
Chair, First 5 San Mateo County Commission 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment 8 

                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                  

Page 1 of 4 

DATE:  May 24, 2021 

TO:  First 5 San Mateo County Commission 

FROM: Kitty Lopez, Executive Director 

RE: Approval of F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Draft Budget and the Use of Ending Fund Balance 
(Reserves*) to Fund F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Adopted Budget  

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 

Approval of F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Draft Budget and the Use of Ending Fund Balance (Reserves*) to 
Fund F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Adopted Budget. 
 

BACKGROUND 

▪ As per F5SMC’s Strategic Plan FY 2020-23 approved by the Commission, the Commission has 
approved higher Community Investments than its fiscal revenues by drawing down funds from the 
Ending Fund Balance (Ending Reserves*) to fund the strategic initiatives that are part of the Strategic 
Plan.  As a reminder, F5SMC has continued to draw down $2 - $3 million per year, per the Strategic 
Plan FY2020-23 and per Long-Term Financial Plan. 

▪ Annual Tobacco Tax Revenue projections will be released end of May 2021.  

▪ COVID-19 and shelter-in-place order has caused delayed planning and executions of Strategic Plan 
Implementation Plan contracts and Other Grants contracts. Most funders of Other Grants allow no 
cost extension at this time.  

▪ Commission approved SPIP FY 2018-20 Underspending Fund Carry Over at its June 22, 2020 
Commission Meeting.  

▪ Finance and Administration Committee has reviewed and endorsed staff proposal for the 
Implementation of the SPIP FY 2018-20 Underspending Fund Carry Over in coordination within        
3-year time frame of the new strategic plan FY 2020-23 at its Finance and Administration Committee 
Meeting on February 8th, 2021.  

▪ Finance and Administration Committee has reviewed and endorsed the F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Draft 
Budget at its Finance and Administrative Committee Meeting on May 10, 2021. 

I. FY 2021-22 DRAFT BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS  

FY 2021-22 Draft Budget is proposed based on the following assumptions: 

• Projected Interest earning rate is 1.0% on the projected Ending Fund Balance of FY 2020-21 
Revised Budget; 

• Using Tobacco Tax Revenue Projections released in May 2020 at this time. Average declining 
rate of Tobacco Tax Revenue projections is 2.89% for the period from FY2017-18 to FY2024-25. 

• Continue implementation of the new strategic plan SPIP FY2020-23 with increased efforts in 
Policy, Advocacy, Communication, and System Changes (PAC); Program Appropriations of SPIP 
FY2020-23 are based on approved funding allocations at this time. 

• Continue implementation of $1.120 M SPIP FY 2018-20 Underspending Fund Carry Over in 
coordination within the 3-year time frame of the new strategic plan FY2020-23. 

• Execute $1.058 M Other Grants and continue to seek new revenue sources acquisitions. 

• Continue current shared cost allocation to Program Appropriations with the following rates: 

✓ 100% Program and Evaluation Staff’s Salaries and Benefits;  

✓ 27% Shared Admin Staff time; and  



Attachment 8 

                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                  

Page 2 of 4 

✓ 50% of Shared Operating Budget  

• Include 3% COLA and approximate 6% increases in healthcare cost projections. 

SUMMARY OF FY 2021-22 DRAFT BUDGET 

  

FY 2020-
21              

Revised 
Budget 

FY 2021-
22 Draft 
Budget 

Increase / 
(Decrease)      

$ 

Increase / 
(Decrease)      

% 

Beginning Fund Balance                        
(Beginning Reserves*) 

11,610,847  9,829,030  (1,781,816) -15% 

Total Revenues 6,907,479  6,260,000  (647,479) -9% 

Total Available Fund             
(Total Sources*) 

18,518,326  16,089,030  (2,429,295) -13% 

Total Appropriations                   
(Net Appropriations*) 

8,689,295  7,931,259  (758,036) -9% 

Ending Fund Balance               
(Ending Reserves*) 

9,829,030  8,157,771  (1,671,259) -17% 

Total Requirements*                 
(Net Appropriations*+ Ending 
Reserves*) 

18,518,326  16,089,030  (2,429,295) -13% 

Surplus / (Deficit)                                      
(Total Revenues – Net 
Appropriations*) 

(1,781,816) (1,671,259) 110,557  -6% 

 
Total Sources*, Net Appropriations*, Reserves*, Total Requirements* are budget terminologies used 
by the County of San Mateo. Since March 2018, F5SMC has applied budget terminologies used by 
the County to the F5SMC Budget 

I. ISUES TO CONSIDER 

• We anticipate having FY 2021-22 Revised Budget in February 2021 after: 

✓ (1) The official Tobacco Tax Revenue Projections will be released end of May 2021; 

✓ (2) FY 2020-21 Budget Close-Out become available and FY 2020-21 financial audit 
completion; 

✓ (3) Continuing contract obligations of SPIP FY2020-23 and SPIP FY2018-20’s Carry Over 
contracts. 

 

II. FISCAL IMPACT 

• Admin Cost Rate of 11%.  

• FY 2021-22 Draft Budget result in a Budget Deficit of $1,671,259. Therefore, we will draw down 
$1,671,259 from Ending Fund Balance (Ending Reserves*) to fund its FY 2021-22 Adopted 
Budget.  

ACTION 

Approval of F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Draft Budget and the Use of Ending Fund Balance (Reserves*) to 
Fund F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Adopted Budget.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment 8 

                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                  

Page 3 of 4 

 
FY 2021-22 DRAFT BUDGET NARRATIVES 

FY 2021-22 Draft Budget are presented in Summary (Attachment 8A), in Details (Attachment 8B) and 
accompanied with the Draft Operating Budget (Attachment 8C). Increases and decreases in the 
Proposed Budget reflect all approved contracts and SPIP funding allocations and executions.  

*Please read the Budget Memo (Attachment 8) in conjunction with the Budget Spreadsheets 
(Attachments 8A, 8B, and 8C). 

A. Revenues Budget is $6.260 M or a net decrease of $647K or 9% decrease.  

Revenue Budget Includes: 

• $96K Interest Revenue  

• $5.106 M Tobacco Tax Revenue 

• $1.058 M Other Grant Revenue projections from 6 Other Grants listed below. This additional 
revenue sources is approximate 20% of Tobacco Tax Revenue Fiscal Allocations of $5.106 M.  

✓ $400K F5CA IMPACT Grant; 

✓ $102K F5CA new Home Visiting Grant; 

✓ $85K Mental Health MHSA Grant from County of San Mateo Behavioral Health & 
Recovery Services (BHRS);  

✓ $75K Help Me Grow Grant from David Lucile Packard Foundation,  

✓ $339K Children with Special Needs Grant from Sequoia Healthcare District; and 

✓ $57K Mental Health Grant from Sequoia Healthcare District; 

Major contributions to net decrease in the Revenue Budget are due to (a) 7% declining rate in 
Tobacco Tax Revenue projections and (b) 8% decreases in Other Grants revenue projections due 
to some Other Grants Revenue receipts in 2020 and 2021 while on 1-3 years execution. 
 

B. Program Appropriations Budget is $7.119 M or a net decrease of $796K or 10% decrease 
 
Program Appropriations include: 

• $3.780 M SPIP FY2020-23 Funding Allocations 

• $1.120 M SPIP FY2018-20 Carry Over 

• $954K Other Grants  

• $1.267 M Program Operations 

Major contributions to the net decrease in Program Appropriations are associated with: 

✓ SPIPFY2018-20 No Cost Extension Contracts end 6.30.2021 

✓ Continuing execution of SPIP FY 2018-20 fund carry over;  

✓ Decreases in Other Grants Appropriations projections. 

✓ 4% increase in Program Operations 

C. Administrative Appropriations Budget is $812K or $38K net increase or 5% increase. 

• $206K Admin shared Operation Budget 

• $605K Admin Staff Salaries and Benefits 



Attachment 8 

                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                  

Page 4 of 4 

Major contributions to the net increase in Administrative Appropriations are associated with 
increases internal county services charges, 3% COLA and 6% healthcare cost increases. 

D. Operating Budget is $412K or $24K net increase or 6% increase  

Operating Budget Includes: 

$118K Services & Supplies Budget or $9K net increase or 8% increase.  

Major contributions to the net increases in Services and Supplies Budget are associated 
reopening business travel and new laptop replacement purchases after 5 years of services. 

$294K Other Charges Budget or $15K net increase or 5% increase.  

Major contributions to the net increases in Other Charges Budget are associated with the 
increases in various County Services Charges and facility lease. 

50% of Operating Budget or 206K is allocated to Program Appropriations and 50% of 
Operating Budget or 206K is allocated to Administrative Appropriations. 

E. Salaries and Benefits Budget is $1.664 M or $62K increase or 4% increase.  

Major contributions to net increases in Salaries and Benefits are associated with 3% union 
negotiated COLA inclusion, and 6% increases in healthcare cost projections. 
 
Inclusion in $1.664 M Salaries and Benefits Budget is $200K or 1.3 FTE equivalents that are 
funded from the new F5CA IMPACT Grant FY 2020-23 and from Other Grants. 

 

F. FY 2021-22 ENDING FUND BALANCE (Reserves*):  

Ending Fund Balance (Reserves*) is $8.157 M or $1.671 M decrease or 17% decrease. 
 

• Major contributions to the net decreases in Ending Fund Balance (Reserves*) are associated with 
supporting and contributing investment dollars to First 5 San Mateo County’s Strategic Plan. 

 

 

 



Attachment 8A

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY                                              

FY 20-21 

Revised Budget 

FY 21-22      

Draft Budget

FY21-22            

Draft Budget             

(+/-) vs.                

FY20-21            

Revised Budget              

($)

FY21-22            

Draft Budget             

(+/-) vs.                

FY20-21            

Revised Budget              

(%)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (Beginning Reserves*) 11,610,847        9,829,030           (1,781,816)            -15%

A. Interest Revenue 145,467             96,000                (49,467)                 -34%

-                        

B. Tobacco Tax Revenue 5,468,407          5,106,000           (362,407)               -7%

Tobacco Tax Revenue Fiscal Year Allocations 5,468,407          5,106,000           (362,407)               -7%

-                        

C. Other Grant Revenues 1,293,605          1,058,000           (235,605)               -18%

F5CA Other Grants / IMPACT Grant 400,000             502,000              102,000                26%

Non-Tobacco Tax Grants (DLP, PHD, 

SHD, MHSA)
1,293,605          556,000              (737,605)               -57%

TOTAL REVENUES 6,907,479          6,260,000           (647,479)               -9%

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUND (Total Sources*) 18,518,326        16,089,030         (2,429,295)            -13%

PROGRAM APPROPRIATIONS

D1. Strategic Plan Investment - SPIP FY 20-23 3,780,000          3,780,000           -                            0%

Community Investments (FE, CH&D, EL) 3,180,000          3,180,000           -                            0%

Evaluation 113,000             113,000              -                            0%

Policy, Advocacy, & Communications (PAC) 487,000             487,000              -                            0%

D2. Strategic Plan Investment - SPIP FY 18-20 Carry-Over 1,075,000          1,120,000           45,000                  4%

Community Investments (FE, CH&D, EL) 400,000             400,000              -                            0%

Evaluation 350,000             350,000              -                            0%

Policy, Advocacy, & Communications (PAC) 325,000             370,000              45,000                  14%

D3. SPIP FY18-20 No Cost Extension 580,355             -                      (580,355)               -100%

Community Investments (FE, CH&D, EL) 483,127             -                      (483,127)               -100%

Evaluation 28,050                -                      (28,050)                 -100%

Policy, Advocacy, & Communications (PAC) 69,179                -                      (69,179)                 -100%

E. Other Grants 1,263,418          954,000              (309,418)               -24%

F5CA Other Grants / IMPACT Grant 350,000             439,000              89,000                  25%

Non-Tobacco Tax Grants (DLP, PHD, SHD, 

MHSA)
913,418             515,000              (398,418)               -44%

-                            

F. Program Operations 1,217,033          1,265,149           48,116                  4%

Program Shared Operating Budget 194,250             206,300              12,050                  6%

Program Staff S&B & Shared Admin Staff Time 844,055             873,309              29,254                  3%

Evaluation Staff S&B 178,728             185,540              6,812                    4%

-                            

Total Program Appropriations (D1+D2+E+F)            7,915,807            7,119,149                (796,658) -10%

ADMIN APPROPRIATIONS

G. Admin Shared Operating Budget 194,250             206,300              12,050                  6%

H. Admin Staff S&B 579,239             605,810              26,571                  5%

Total Admin Appropriations (G+H)               773,489               812,110                   38,621 5%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (Net Appropriations*) 8,689,295          7,931,259           (758,036)               -9%

Surplus / (Deficit) (Total Revenues - Total Appropriations) (1,781,816)         (1,671,259)          110,557                -6%

ENDING FUND BALANCE 9,829,030          8,157,771           (1,671,259)            -17%

Total S&B 1,602,022          1,664,659           62,637                  4%

FY 2021-22 DRAFT BUDGET SUMMARY 



Attachment 8B

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY                                                                Attachment 3.A               

ORG/ACCT#
FY20-21 Revised 

Budget

FY21-22 Draft 

Budget 

FY21-22            

Draft Budget             

(+/-) vs.                

FY20-21            

Revised Budget              

($)

FY21-22            

Draft Budget             

(+/-) vs.                

FY20-21            

Revised 

Budget              

(%)

 Notes to FY2021-22 Draft Budget 

 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                     

(Beginning Reserves*)           11,610,847               9,829,030                (1,781,816) -15%

 A. Interest Revenue   19510-1521  145,467 96,000 (49,467) -34%

 B. Tobacco Tax Revenue 5,468,407 5,106,000 (362,407) -7%

Tobacco Tax Revenue Fiscal Year 

Allocations   19510-1861  5,468,407 5,106,000 (362,407) -7% May 2020 Tobacco Tax projections

 C. Other Grant Revenues 1,293,605 1,058,000 (235,605) -18%

 F5CA IMPACT Grant FY20-23   19510-1861  400,000 400,000 0 0% Pending grant no cost extension

 F5CA Home Visiting Grant FY20-22   19510-1861  102,000 102,000 Pending grant no cost extension

 F5SF IMPACT HUB TA FY20-21   19510-2643  49,902 (49,902) -100% Pending new grant award FY21-22 

 County of San Mateo BHRS - Mental 

Health Services MHSA Prop 63   19510-2643  184,703 85,000 (99,703) -54% Pending grant no cost extension

 Peninsula Healthcare District - HMG Call 

Center Grant FY19-20   19510-2643  35,000 (35,000) -100%

 Peninsula Healthcare District - HMG Call 

Center Grant FY20-21   19510-2643  50,000 (50,000) -100%

 David Lucile Packard- Help Me Grow 

FY20-22   19510-2643  75,000 75,000 0 0%

 Sequoia Healthcare District - Special 

Needs Grant FY20-23   19510-2643  363,000 339,000 (24,000) -7% Pending grant no cost extension

 Sequoia Healthcare District - Mental 

Health Grant FY20-23   19510-2643  86,000 57,000 (29,000) -34% Pending grant no cost extension

Aurrera Health Group - ACES Aware   19510-2643  50,000                (50,000)                   -100% Pending grant no cost extension

 TOTAL REVENUES             6,907,479               6,260,000                   (647,479) -9%

 TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS                                        

(TOTAL SOURCES*)            18,518,326             16,089,030                (2,429,295) -13%

 APPROPRIATIONS   

 PROGRAM APPROPRIATIONS 

 D1. Strategic Plan Investment - SPIP FY 20-23 3,780,000 3,780,000 0 0% SPIP FY20-23 Funding Allocation

 Family Engagement  19540-6125 1,060,000 1,060,000 0 0%

 Children Health & Development  19540-6156 1,060,000 1,060,000 0 0%

 Early Learning  19540-6263 1,060,000 1,060,000 0 0%

 Grant Management and Other Evaluation 

Projects 19540-6265 113,000              113,000                 -                          0%

 Policy Advocacy, Communications & 

Systems Change 19540-6814 380,000 380,000 0 0%

 Emerging Projects   19540-6814 107,000 107,000 0 0%

 D2. Strategic Plan Investment - SPIP FY 18-20 

Carry-Over 1,075,000           1,120,000              45,000                     4%

The implementation of the SPIP FY 2018-20 Carry 

Over Funds are in coordination within the 3-year 

time frame of the new strategic plan FY 2020-23

 Children Health & Development - Carry 

Over  19540-6156 300,000 300,000 0 0%

  Early Learning - Carry Over  19540-6263 100,000 100,000 0 0%

 Other Evaluation Projects - Carry Over  19540-6265 350,000              350,000                 -                          0%

 PAC - Carry Over  19540-6814 150,000 250,000 100,000 67%

Pending $100K contract obligations of Build Up 

Kids program started in 2020 (F5SMC's shared 

contribution)

 Emerging Projects - Carry Over  19540-6814 175,000 120,000 (55,000) -31%

 D3. SPIP FY18-20 No Cost Extension  580,355 0 (580,355) -100% No cost extension contracts end 6.30.2021

 Family Engagement - No Cost Extension  19540-6125 19,067 (19,067) -100%

 Children Health & Development - No Cost 

Extension  19540-6156 149,411 (149,411) -100%

  Early Learning - No Cost Extension  19540-6263 314,649 (314,649) -100%

 Other Evaluation Projects - No Cost 

Extension  19540-6265 28,050 (28,050) -100%

 PAC - No Cost Extension  19540-6814 69,179 (69,179) -100%

 E. Other Grants 1,263,418 954,000 (309,418) -24%

FY 2021-22 DRAFT BUDGET DETAILS



Attachment 8B

ORG/ACCT#
FY20-21 Revised 

Budget

FY21-22 Draft 

Budget 

FY21-22            

Draft Budget             

(+/-) vs.                

FY20-21            

Revised Budget              

($)

FY21-22            

Draft Budget             

(+/-) vs.                

FY20-21            

Revised 

Budget              

(%)

 Notes to FY2021-22 Draft Budget 

 F5CA IMPACT Grant  19540-6126 350,000 350,000 0 0%

 F5CA Home Visiting Grant 89,000 89,000 

 F5SF IMPACT HUB TA FY20-21  19540-6126 42,418 (42,418) -100% Pending new grant award FY21-22

 County of San Mateo BHRS - Mental 

Health Services MHSA Prop 63  19540-6131 120,000 64,000 (56,000) -47%

 Peninsula Healthcare District - HMG Call 

Center Grant FY19-20  19540-6131 27,000 (27,000) -100% Grant ended.

 Peninsula Healthcare District - HMG Call 

Center Grant FY20-21  19540-6131 35,000 42,000 7,000 20%

 David Lucile Packard- Help Me Grow  19540-6131 76,000 58,000 (18,000) -24%

 Sequoia Healthcare District - Special 

Needs Grant  19540-6131 385,000 317,000 (68,000) -18%

 Sequoia Healthcare District - Mental 

Health Grant  19540-6131 63,000 34,000 (29,000) -46%

Aurrera Health Group - ACES Aware  19540-6131 35,000 (35,000) -100%

 San Mateo County Human Services 

Agency - Build Up Kids Facilities Grant  19540-6131 130,000 (130,000) -100%

 F. Program Operations 1,217,033 1,265,149 48,116 4%

 Program Shared Operating Budget  194,250 206,300 12,050 6%

Program Staff S&B & Shared Admin Staff Time 844,055 873,309 29,254 3%

Evaluation Staff S&B 178,728 185,540 6,812 4%

 Total Program Appropriations (D1+D2+D3+E+F) 7,915,807 7,119,149 (796,658) -10%

 ADMIN APPROPRIATIONS 

 G. Admin Shared Operating Budget  194,250 206,300 12,050 6%

H. Admin Staff S&B 579,239 605,810 26,571 5%

 Total Administrative Appropriations  773,489 812,110 38,621 5%

 Administrative Cost Rate %  9% 10.24%

0

 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS                                         (NET 

APPROPRIATIONS*) 8,689,295 7,931,259 (758,036) -9%

0

 ENDING FUND BALANCE                                 (ENDING 

RESERVES*)  9,829,030 8,157,771 -1,671,259 -17%

Color Coding

Shared Budget/Shared Cost

Revenue ; Fund Balance

Appropriations

Salaries & Benefits



Schedule 1-  FY 2021-22 DRAFT OPERATING BUDGET Attachment 8C

 ORG   /  

ACCT# 

FY20-21 

Revised 

Budget

FY21-22 

Budget Draft

FY21-22            

Draft Budget             

(+/-) vs.                

FY20-21            

Revised 

Budget              

($)

FY21-22            

Draft Budget             

(+/-) vs.                

FY20-21            

Revised 

Budget              

(%)

 Notes to FY2021-22 Budget Draft 

I. Services and Supplies

Outside Printing & Copy Svc 19510-5191 2,000 2,000 0 0%

General Office Supplies 19510-5193 8,000 8,000 0 0%

Photocopy Lease & Usage 19510-5196 5,000 5,000 0 0%

 Computer Supplies 19510-5211 10,000 15,000 5,000 50%

Software licenses and Place holder for 

emergency IT equipment

 County Memberships - (e.g. F5 Assn 

Dues) 19510-5331 15,000 15,000 0 0%

Auto Allowance 19510-5712 11,000 11,000 0 0%

 Meetings & Conference Expense 19510-5721 10,000 10,000 0 0%

 Commissioners Meetings & Conference 

Exp 19510-5723 5,000 5,000 0 0%

 Other Business Travel Expense 19510-5724 6,000 10,000 4,000 67% Reopening business travel

 Dept. Employee Training Expense 19510-5731 7,000 7,000 0 0%

 Wellness grant  19510-5856 0 0 0 

 Other Professional Services 19510-5858 30,000 30,000 0 0%

 Sub Total - Services & Supplies             109,000             118,000                 9,000 8%

 II. Other Charges 

 Telephone Service Charges 19510-6712 4,500 5,500 1,000 22% Include direct Communication Services

 Automation Services - ISD 19510-6713 48,000 57,000 9,000 19%

 Annual Facilities Lease 19510-6716 97,000 105,000 8,000 8%

 General Liability Insurance 19510-6725 9,800 10,500 700 7% Liability Insurance increase

 Official Bond Insurance 19510-6727 600 800 200 33%

 Human Resources Services 19510-6733 2,000 2,000 0 0% County Human Resources training 

 Countywide Security Services 19510-6738 600 800 200 33%

 All Other Service Charges 19510-6739 60,000 60,000 0 0%

include Card Keys, Audit, County Counsel and 

Accounting Services

 A-87 Expense 19510-6821 57,000 53,000 (4,000) -7%

 Sub Total - Other Charges             279,500             294,600               15,100 5%

 Total Operating Budget             388,500             412,600               24,100 6%

 Program Shared Operating Budget              194,250             206,300               12,050 6% Allocation rate 50%

 Admin Shared Operating Budget             194,250             206,300               12,050 6% Allocation rate 50%

25,750              

Schedule 2 - FY 2021-22 DRAFT SALARIES & BENEFITS BUDGET 

  Program Staff & Shared Admin Staff 844,055            873,309 29,254 3% 27% Admin staff time allocated to Program

 Evaluation Staff 178,728            185,540 6,812 4%

 Admin Staff 579,239            605,810 26,571 5%

Total Salaries and Benefits  $      1,602,022  $      1,664,659  $           62,637 4% COLA inclusion



       

Page 1 of 3 
 

     Attachment 9  

 
FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY (F5SMC) 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
MAY 2021 

 

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT FOCUS AREAS – UPDATE  

QUALITY CARE AND EDUCATION 
 
Child Care Partnership Council 
On May 17, 2021, the Child Care Partnership Council (CCPC) met for its bi-monthly meeting. All 
work groups met as well: Leadership & Impact, Workforce, Access and Quality Supports. The 
Leadership & Impact Workgroup reviewed the CCPC legislation tracker, delved into the 
California May Revise 2021, and discussed additional key areas or deeper work addressing the 
comprehensive needs of children in early learning settings. 
 
SMC Child Care Provider Survey 2021 
The CCPC, on behalf of the COVID-19 Child Care Response Team, conducted a San Mateo 
County provider survey in April 2021.  Much work will need to be done to address the 
sustainability and viability of the sector and workforce. A sample of key findings:  

 
Pre-COVID-19, 4Cs had 935 child care programs active in their database. As of February 12, 
573 child care programs have told 4Cs they are open. According to Community Care 
Licensing, 25 centers and 27 large family child care homes have closed since Shelter-in-
Place began.  
 
Recent Data: We received 161 complete responses. Some of the key findings include: 
o Enrollment is approximately 61% of pre-COVID levels  
o 41% of respondents are receiving 50% or less of their pre-COVID income  
o 45% of respondents have 1 month or less of cash on hand  
o 39% of respondents have COVID-related debt  
o 65% of centers say they are “very confident” or “confident” that they will remain in 

business through 2021; only 39% of FCCs said they are “very confident” or “confident”  
o “Financial Assistance with Personnel Costs” and “Rent, lease or mortgage assistance” 

were cited as the top two most helpful financial supports  
o “Access to free/low-cost PPE and cleaning supplies” and “Education for families to 

encourage them to return to care” were cited as the top two most helpful non-financial 
supports. 

 
 
HEALTHY CHILDREN 
 
Children’s Oral Health (COH) Workgroup  

The COH Workgroup met on May 5th with a full agenda, which included an update from the 

County Oral Health Public Health Director, Dr. Shakalpi Pendurkar, a policy update from 

Workgroup Co-chair and Children’ Now Senior Managing Director for Oral Health. The 

attendees also discussed evolving opportunities for school-based partnerships in anticipation of 

a return to in-person learning in Fall of 2021. 

 

 



       

Page 2 of 3 
 

     Attachment 9  

Help Me Grow Physician Advisory Group (HMG PAG):  

On May 17th the HMG PAG convened under the leadership of HMG Physician Champion and 

F5SMC Commissioner Dr. Neel Patel with a focus on ACEs Screening and the ACEs Aware 

Initiative as well as a Presentation from HMG SMC Consultant Cheryl Oku on her recently 

authored Early Identification and Intervention Environmental Scan.  

 

POLICY & ADVOCACY UPDATES 

$20 Million One-time Early Childhood COVID Relief Funding to Integrate Systems Serving 
Young Children and Families 
F5SMC’s Executive Director, Kitty Lopez, reached out to several Legislature members 
requesting them to support the proposal from First 5 Association of California that would 
allocate $20 million in one-time General Fund dollars to early childhood system integration 
funding across all 58 counties. Assemblymember Marc Berman, Assemblymember Kevin Mullin, 
and Senator Josh Becker signed on to support the proposal.  Although the F5 proposal is not 
mentioned in the Governor’s May revision to the state budget,  it is still in Committee for 
consideration and advocacy. 
(See Attachment 9.1) 
 
 
Budget Request for $10 million Investment for Statewide Diaper and Wipe Distribution 
First 5 San Mateo County along with other agencies sign-onto a letter address to Senate Budget 
Committee and Budget Subcommittee on Health and Human Services requesting that the 
Legislature allocate $10 million for diaper and wipe distribution in the 2021 – 2022 Budget.  
(See Attachment 9.2) 
 
 
Mothers are being left behind in the economic recovery from COVID-19 
Lauren Bauer wrote the article in Brookings on May 6, 2021, which provided additional data on 
the challenges that many mothers, especially with young children ages 0 – 5, face during the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  Click the link to read the article: 

https://www.brookings.edu/blog/up-front/2021/05/06/mothers-are-being-left-behind-in-the-
economic-recovery-from-covid-19/?utm_campaign=brookings-
comm&utm_medium=email&utm_content=125828433&utm_source=hs_email 
 
 

FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA & FIRST 5 ASSOCIATION UPDATES 

First 5 Association 

On May 14th, the First 5 Association released a joint statement with First 5 California and First 5 

LA on Governor Newsom’s May Revision to the state budget an unprecedented investment in 

comprehensive supports for children and families. The joint statement is available here available 

here: https://first5association.org/2021/05/14/first-5-may-budget-revision-advances-holistic-

approach-to-improving-the-health-of-children-and-families/ 
 

The First 5 Association reviewed their analysis and overview of Governor Newsom’s May 

Revise at a virtual meeting on May 17, 2021.  The Association’s Overview is available here: 

https://app.box.com/s/5tvwicwutqwsx0i6wip3ila5ahiyvc1d 

 

   

https://www.brookings.edu/blog/up-front/2021/05/06/mothers-are-being-left-behind-in-the-economic-recovery-from-covid-19/?utm_campaign=brookings-comm&utm_medium=email&utm_content=125828433&utm_source=hs_email
https://www.brookings.edu/blog/up-front/2021/05/06/mothers-are-being-left-behind-in-the-economic-recovery-from-covid-19/?utm_campaign=brookings-comm&utm_medium=email&utm_content=125828433&utm_source=hs_email
https://www.brookings.edu/blog/up-front/2021/05/06/mothers-are-being-left-behind-in-the-economic-recovery-from-covid-19/?utm_campaign=brookings-comm&utm_medium=email&utm_content=125828433&utm_source=hs_email
https://first5association.org/2021/05/14/first-5-may-budget-revision-advances-holistic-approach-to-improving-the-health-of-children-and-families/
https://first5association.org/2021/05/14/first-5-may-budget-revision-advances-holistic-approach-to-improving-the-health-of-children-and-families/
https://app.box.com/s/5tvwicwutqwsx0i6wip3ila5ahiyvc1d


       

Page 3 of 3 
 

     Attachment 9  

 

COMMUNITY AND STATEWIDE EVENTS & UPDATES  
 
Vaccination Outreach 
On May 4th, First 5 San Mateo County was one of the sponsors for a COVID-19 (first dose) 
vaccination event held in San Bruno hosted by the Pentecostal Missionary Church of Christ (4th 
Watch).  The $1,500 sponsorship will provide sanitizers, PPE items, and vaccine educational 
materials to families with small children who participated in the event. The second dose 
vaccination event will be held on May 25, 2021. 
 
Vaccine Confidence Townhalls- Kaiser Permanente 
On May 11th, F5SMC and 4Cs, in partnership with Kaiser, hosted the first of four-vaccine 
confidence town-halls provided by Kaiser physicians. The town-halls will be provided in English, 
Spanish, Mandarin and Tagalog. 
 
 

COMMUNICATIONS  
 
Newsletter 
F5SMC Communications Team, along with its communications firm, VIVA Social Impact 
Partners, is developing the next quarterly newsletter. Among topics are the Early Identification 
and Intervention Environmental Scan in San Mateo County, highlights from the First 5 
Association Advocacy Day, and ACEs Aware. The newsletter will tentatively go out by the end 
of the month. 
 
Upcoming Blog 
Be on the lookout for the upcoming blog from our community partner, Puente de la Costa Sur! 
VIVA Social Impact Partners is working with them on the impact of their work to the community 
in Pescadero. 
 
Program Initiatives 
F5SMC Program Team is working with VIVA Social Impacts in developing communications 
materials and approaches on F5SMC’s initiatives such as Build Up for San Mateo County’s 
Children, ACEs Aware, and Help Me Grow.  
 
Social Media and Analytics Report (See Attachment 9.3) 
 
 



April 28th, 2021 

The Honorable Nancy Skinner         The Honorable Phil Ting 
Chair, Senate Committee on Budget & Fiscal        Chair, Assembly Budget Committee 
Review         State Capitol, Rm.6206 
State Capitol, Rm. 5019         Sacramento, CA 95814 
Sacramento, CA 95814   

The Honorable Susan Talamantes Eggman        The Honorable Dr. Joaquin Arambula 
Chair, Senate Committee on Budget Subcommittee 3        Chair, Assembly Budget Subcommittee 1 
On Health and Human Services         on Health and Human Services 
State Capitol Rm. 5019         State Capitol Rm. 6206 
Sacramento, CA 95814         Sacramento, 95814 

Re: $20 Million One-time Early Childhood COVID Relief Funding to Integrate Systems Serving 
Young Children and Families  

Dear Committee Chair Skinner and Subcommittee Chair Eggman, 

We write to voice our strong support for the budget request, proposed by First 5 Association of 
California, to allocate one-time funds toward building integrated early childhood and family systems 
infrastructure to better connect children, families and care providers to available services that are 
effectively inaccessible or underutilized due to the siloed systems of care.  

This proposal would allocate $20 million in one-time General Fund dollars to early childhood 
system integration funding across all 58 counties in order to braid and build upon comprehensive 
and cross-sector systems to support families as they continue to grapple with and prepare to emerge 
from manifold crises generated by the COVID-19 pandemic.  

The impacts of COVID-19 on our young children and families have been heartbreaking, and have 
exacerbated longstanding inequities across every facet of our communities. The pandemic has intensified 
the longstanding need for an array of services for young children and families that target health, mental 
health, family strengthening, early learning, and basic and essential childcare needs. Yet siloed programs 
and systems of care frequently cause families to fall through cracks and prevent them from accessing the 
care, supports and services they are eligible to receive during their most critical times of need. 

ATTACHMENT 9.1



This is especially the case for children and families of color, who have not only shouldered the brunt of 
the pandemic, but also continue to confront numerous and intractable impacts of systemic racism. Siloed 
systems of care are challenging to navigate, often inflexible and are inefficient for the families that rely on 
them. Fragmented services across multiple programs can leave families living in poverty behind and 
unable to address the pervasive intergenerational traumas still entrenched in their lives. 

Simply put, families have long needed systems that integrate all efforts to promote family stability 
and optimal child development, with the end goal of making services more accessible and 
responsive to families. COVID-19 has only underscored this need, and such approaches in early 
childhood development will help California build back better, bolder, and with more resilience.  

However, systems cannot integrate on their own. Cross-sector system integration requires funding to 
ensure that an array of needs are met equitably. In response to this crucial and pressing request, the state 
can and should build upon the already existing local infrastructure to meet the overarching needs of 
children and families.  

In strong alignment with the state’s Master Plan on Early Learning & Care and vision around whole-child 
approaches, the 58 First 5 commissions are working to build integrated and cross-sector systems of care. 
While the systems vary from county to county to build upon each community’s unique assets and 
infrastructure, all are based on a Whole-Child, Whole-Family framework that recognizes the holistic 
needs of healthy child development and the inextricable connection between the wellbeing of both child 
and parent/caregiver. This work, however, is unfinished. Early childhood systems are at an impasse, 
having been strained and taxed further by the increased hardships spurred by the pandemic. This 
investment will help address the holistic needs of children and families today, but will also help 
build and connect the early childhood development systems that we need for tomorrow.  

First 5s across the state have been your partners throughout the state’s response to COVID-19 and are 
committed to supporting children and families through our state’s recovery and beyond. In order to 
integrate systems serving these young children and families, and to help ensure that young children get a 
strong start in life, we respectfully urge the Administration and Legislature to include $20 million in one-
time General Fund dollars for early childhood system integration funding in the FY 2021-22 state budget. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request and your commitment to improving the health and 
wellbeing of all young children and families. 

 Sincerely,  

Josh Newman  
Senator, 29th District 

ATTACHMENT 9.1



ALL AGENCY LOGOS  

May 1, 2021 

The Honorable Nancy Skinner 
Chair, Senate Budget Committee 
California State Senate 
State Capitol, Room 5094 

The Honorable Susan Talamantes Eggman 
Chair, Budget Subcommittee 3 on Health and 
Human Services 
California State Senate 
State Capitol, Rm. 4052 

The Honorable Philip Ting 
Chair, Assembly Budget Committee 
California State Assembly 
State Capitol, Room 6026 

The Honorable Joaquin Arambula 
Chair, Budget Subcommittee 1 on Health and 
Human Services 
California State Assembly 
State Capitol, Room 5155 

Re: Budget Request for $10 million Investment for Statewide Diaper and Wipe Distribution 

Dear Chairs Skinner, Ting, Eggman, and Arambula: 

We are writing to request that the Legislature allocate $10 million for diaper and wipe distribution in the 
2021-2022 Budget. This critical investment will expand the existing Diaper Bank Program to provide a 
statewide reach through existing efforts administered by SupplyBank.Org and their partners. This expansion 
will provide diapers to families in need, create jobs for the families it serves, and improve the State’s ability 
to respond to emergency supply needs during disasters. The design of this proposal is to coordinate with 
another budget request for diaper banks in eight counties, creating a complete 58-county statewide 
approach. This proposal complements the current program by using existing logistics infrastructure 
developed to respond to the pandemic to serve all counties that are not currently served. 

Prior to the Pandemic, “Diaper Need,” or an insufficient supply of diapers to keep babies clean and dry, 
afflicted 1 in 3 mothers in the United States. Diapers for one child can cost up to $80 a month, making diapers 
the third or fourth greatest cost burden for many families on CalWORKs after rent, food and sometimes 
transportation. With a pre-pandemic average of 40,000 emergency room and inpatient visits related to 
diaper need annually in California, this issue causes severe health consequences for infants and toddlers and 
significant costs to the state. Diapers are also a requirement for most childcare providers, making diaper 
need a barrier to affordable childcare and thus employment. Since the first local Public Health order on 
March 16th of 2020, the need for diaper assistance has grown dramatically and persisted at record levels. 

From 2016 through early 2020, SupplyBank.Org worked with several philanthropic partners, First 5 California, 
16 counties, their First 5 Commissions, and other partners throughout California to develop an efficient, 
scalable and nimble program that assists thousands of families from Humboldt to the Inland Empire. Through 
these 16 county pilots, agencies found that integration of diaper and wipe distribution into existing programs 
identified by local Commissions such as WIC, Family Resource Centers, CalWORKS home visitation and other 
home visitation programs and many others, enabled the program to be administered efficiently and 
reinforced relationships between social workers and their clients. The most common feedback was that the 
diaper program incentivized other valuable programming with a “leg up” approach.   

ATTACHMENT 9.2



To build on the promising outcomes of addressing diaper need through this model, SupplyBank.Org worked 
with 50 County First 5 Agencies and allied agencies, to assess diaper need in their county and outline how it 
would best be addressed.  The Statewide Diaper Need Assessment, included a report on each County 
Commissions’ existing efforts to end diaper need (if any), programs that could incorporate a diaper need 
assistance component and challenges for program implementation and solutions. Immediately following the 
conclusion of this report in early 2020, the programmatic statewide model outlined was tested by the 
Pandemic. 

In late February of 2020, SupplyBank.Org started to coordinate with agencies that foresaw the shortages in 
essential supplies to come. From March of 2020 to present, our agency worked with Cal-OES, County EOCs, 
FEMA, First 5 California and 58 county commissions, Community Services and Development, several dozen 
County Resource and Referral Networks, 40 Community Service Action Agencies, 100 Local Education 
Agencies and several others to establish and administer 58 county emergency supplies programs. Each 
ongoing county program includes diapers and wipes. 

Completed in late February of 2021, our most recent 58 county emergency supplies assessment for young 
children and families would support this. The results showed nearly all counties ranked the need for diapers 
and wipes at the second highest or highest level of need, equal or greater to most PPE items. Given the 
verifiable need and fact that access to diapers is essential, we respectfully request that the Legislature 
allocate an additional $10 million for diaper distribution in the 2021-2022 Budget. We believe that additional 
funding for a statewide model, in collaboration with other efforts, would continue the coordination for 
centralized competitive procurement and logistics, while leveraging the localized multi-billion-dollar safety 
net infrastructure for early childhood development already in place at the local level. This approach combines 
the greatest potential economies of scale with localized partnerships to reach the most vulnerable families 
through county specific plans that partner with the most trusted community partners to seamlessly reach 
those most in need. This program would be administered by the Department of Social Services, or other 
suitable department or agency. 

We look forward to working with you to secure $10 million in funding for statewide diaper distribution in the 
2021-2022 Budget. We thank you and the Governor for your efforts on this topic to date and your 
consideration of this important matter. Should you have any questions regarding this proposal you may 
contact Benito Delgado-Olson at Benito@SupplyBank.Org or 510.569.5862.  

Sincerely, 

NAMES AND TITLES OF ALL SIGNING  

cc: Joe Stephenshaw, Staff Director, Senate Budget and Fiscal Review Committee 
Christian Griffith, Chief Consultant, Assembly Budget Committee 
Renita Polk, Consultant, Senate Budget and Fiscal Review Committee 
Nicole Vazquez, Consultant, Assembly Budget Committee  

ATTACHMENT 9.2

mailto:Benito@SupplyBank.Org


Basic Needs – Essential Services 

BUDGET PROPOSAL: 
$10M Diapers and Wipes 

Statewide Fact Sheet 
Updated April 15, 2021 

Budget Proposal - Addressing Diaper Need in California 

Overview 

The nonprofit SupplyBank.Org is proposing a one-time state budget allocation of $10 million for diaper 
and wipe distribution in the 2021-2022 Budget, as introduced by Assmeblymember Wicks.   

This critical investment will expand the existing Diaper Bank Program to provide a statewide reach 
through existing efforts administered by SupplyBank.Org. This expansion will provide diapers to families 
in need, create jobs for the families it serves, and improve the State’s ability to respond to emergency 
supply needs during disasters. The design of this proposal is to coordinate with another budget request 
for $30 million for diaper banks in eight counties, creating a complete 58-county statewide approach. 

Diaper Need 

Prior to the Pandemic, “Diaper Need,” or an 
insufficient supply of diapers to keep babies clean 
and dry, afflicted 1 in 3 mothers in the United States. 
Diapers for one child can cost up to $80 a month, 
making diapers the third or fourth greatest cost 
burden for many families on CalWORKs after rent, 
food and sometimes transportation. With a pre-
pandemic average of 40,000 emergency room and 
inpatient visits related to diaper need annually in 
California, this issue causes severe health 
consequences for babies and significant costs to the 
state. Diapers are also a requirement for most childcare providers, making diaper need a barrier to 
affordable childcare and thus employment. Since the first local Public Health order on March 16, 2020, 
the need for diaper assistance has grown dramatically and persisted at record levels. 

COVID-19 Response: Diapers, Wipes and PPE - A 58 County Program When it is Needed Most 

In February of 2020, SupplyBank.Org started to coordinate with agencies that foresaw the shortages in 
essential supplies to come. From March of 2020 through present, SupplyBank.Org continues to work 
with Cal-OES, County EOCs, FEMA, First 5 California and 58 county commissions, Community Services 
and Development, several dozen County Resource and Referral Networks, 40 Community Service Action 
Agencies, 100 Local Education Agencies and several others to administer 58 county emergency supplies 
programs. Each ongoing county program includes diapers and wipes.  

ATTACHMENT 9.2



Basic Needs – Essential Services 

BUDGET PROPOSAL: 
$10M Diapers and Wipes 

Statewide Fact Sheet 
Updated April 15, 2021 

SupplyBank.Org’s Work on Diaper Need  

This effort was possible because it built on SupplyBank.Org’s 
promising outcomes of addressing diaper need through its 
model of distributing through hundreds of partnering agencies 
with clients in need. From 2016 through early 2020, 
SupplyBank.Org worked with several philanthropic partners, First 
5 California, 16 counties, their First 5 Commissions, and others 
throughout California to develop an efficient, scalable and nimble 
program that assists thousands of families from Humboldt to the Inland Empire. First 5 
was initially chosen as a partner because of their purpose which in part includes, “to create a 
comprehensive and integrated delivery system of information and services to promote early childhood 
development,” making their 20+ years of institutional knowledge at the local level of existing programs 
where diaper and wipe distribution could be integrated unrivaled. 

Integration into Existing Programming is Key 

These 16 county pilots demonstrated that integration of diaper and wipe distribution into existing 
programs identified by local Commissions such as WIC, Family Resource Centers, CalWORKs home 
visitation and other home visitation programs and many others, enabled a program to be established 
quickly, administered efficiently and reinforced relationships between social workers and their clients. 
The most common feedback was from evaluations was that the diaper program incentivized other 
valuable programming with a “leg up” approach, as opposed to another “handout line.”   

2019 Statewide “Diaper Needs” Assessment 

Prior to the Pandemic, to assess diaper need in every county and outline what a program to address it 
would like, SupplyBank.Org worked with all County First 5 Agencies and allied agencies. The Statewide 
Diaper Need Assessment, included a report on each County Commissions’ existing efforts to end diaper 
need (if any), programs that could incorporate a diaper need assistance component and challenges for 
program implementation and solutions. Immediately following the conclusion of this report in early 
2020, the Pandemic tested the programmatic statewide model outlined in the report. As stated, it has 
been instrumental in providing thousands of agencies and childcare providers with critical resources to 
reduce community spread of the Virus.  

February 2021 Emergency 
Supplies Needs Assessment 
“Diapers and wipes are 
needed as much as PPE!” 

Completed in February of 2021, 
our most recent 58 county 
emergency supplies assessment 
for young children and families 
resulted with nearly all counties 
ranking the need for diapers and 
wipes at the second highest or 
highest level of need (see graph 
to the right).  

ATTACHMENT 9.2



Basic Needs – Essential Services 

BUDGET PROPOSAL: 
$10M Diapers and Wipes 

Statewide Fact Sheet 
Updated April 15, 2021 

Program Design and Administration  

Consistent with other statewide programs, SupplyBank.Org would use an algorithm that includes each 
county's birth rate as a percentage of the total, add a baseline to ensure smaller counties had a 
meaningful amount of resources and build out an allocation plan accordingly. SupplyBank.Org would 
work directly with each First 5 County Commission and/or their designated lead agency or agencies to 
continue existing efforts and modify as needed their county-specific distribution, storage, and delivery 
plan. As part of SupplyBank.Org’s normal due diligence, counties would also be provided data 
highlighting customized public assistance programs geospatial mapping and also existing resources such 
as the Healthy Places Index to pinpoint communities most in need of support by different metrics. These 
county-specific plans include a vast network of safety net actors that can collectively reach their 
respective communities. Local partner types typically include:  

 Family Resource Centers
 WIC
 Home visitation programs (CalWORKs

and others)
 Resource and Referral Agencies
 County First 5 run centers
 Childcare providers (data to be

gathered)
 Homeless and domestic violence

shelters
 County Offices of Education for teen

parents
 Other agency partners

Other Benefits: Jobs, More Resources and Enhanced Disaster Response 

Creating and incentivizing other opportunities for the people their programs serve is a central value of 
SupplyBank.Org, which is in part why the Organization integrates distributions through existing 
programs that provide other benefits. Additionally, SupplyBank.Org began to integrate some COVID 
response deliveries in the Central Valley with a truck driving school and plans to expand the model with 
this proposal’s approval. As evidenced by the evolution of SupplyBank.Org’s former diaper bank pilots, 
the Agency will integrate other resources such as period supplies, hygiene kits and other essentials into 
this program to increase the value to families and continue to utilize this network as a distribution 
channel that can accommodate emergency needs brought by future disasters.  Lastly, as seen below and 
the previous page, diaper would branded with award-winning Talk, Read, Sing messaging designed to 
boost parent-baby interaction and thus brain development during diaper time.   

Conclusion: This critical $10M investment will enhance and continue 
emergency County efforts already underway to address diaper 
need in California, while leveraging and strengthening existing 
safety net investments, creating local jobs and improving 
emergency disaster response capabilities to vulnerable families, 
while collaborating with other efforts.  

This map shows CalWORKs enrollment for 0-3 year olds by zip code 
in Alameda County. SupplyBank.Org created similar maps with 
other program enrollment metrics for the other 15 county pilots 
from 2016-2019 to assist in determining program design. 

ATTACHMENT 9.2



1 of 7

REPORT FOR APR 1, 2021 - APR 30, 2021

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO ANALYTICS

OVERVIEW

O VERVIEW - APRIL

April com m unications across F5SMC platform s continued to share the new website, CO VID-19 vaccine inform ation , Advocacy Day, ACEs Aware, and
dissem inating priority inform ation from  the county and local partners.  
Websit e
April analytics indicate that the new website analytics indicated steady perform ance and an increase of total sessions from  1,369 to 1,752. Visitors stayed to
explore m ultiple pages on the website. There was an increase in  visitor sessions from  organic search and Facebook referrals. 
Social  Media

Facebook followers increased from  1541 to 1546 in  April. Page im pressions significantly increased. Top posts by engagem ent are those focused on
advocacy efforts and m essages prom oting the early educators, as well as vaccine inform ation. 
An investm ent of about $160 in  social m edia paid advertisem ents prom oting the new website generated 19,688 im pressions, a reach of 7,844 , and
458 clicks.
Instagram  followers increased from  1152 to 1154 in  April. The engagem ent rate increased from  4 .89% to 5.21%. The top post by im pressions and
engagem ent this m onth varied across a num ber of topics, including recognition of Earth Day, ACEs Aware, CO VID-19 resource, and Autism
Awareness.
Twitter followers increased from  633 to 638 and im pressions rem ained consistent at 3.6K im pressions. Follower engagem ent and retweets continued
to increase in  April.
LinkedIn has 90 followers. Engagem ent increased from  5.2% to 7.9%. Posts with h igher engagem ent focused on prom oting ACEs Aware train ing
opportunities.  

Email  Mar ket ing
There was no newsletter distributed in  April.
Two em ail cam paigns were sent out by F5SMC. Em ails focused on the Com m ission Meeting and the Hom e Visiting RFQ . The Com m ission Meeting
em ail received the h ighest click rates.

WEBSITE ANALYTICS

TO P PAGES BY  PAGEVIEWS

Page Path Pageviews 

/ 1,195
/about/ 100
/staff/ 84
/com m ission/ 59
/traum a-and-resiliency/ 55
/who-we-are/ 53
/funding-opportunities/ 47
/covid-19-inform ation-resources/ 46
/news-updates/ 43
/acerca-de/com ision/louise-rogers-2/ 42
/contact/ 42
/our-work/ 40
/2018/10/ 39
/resources/ 39
/kit-for-new-parents/ 38
/early-childhood-developm ent/ 36
/for-parents-fam ilies/ 35

TO TAL SESSIO NS

Previou s period Previou s year

1,757

1,369 2,190

PAGES PER SESSIO N

Previou s period Previou s year

1.8

2.5 1.8

ATTACHMENT 9.3



2 of 7

AVERAGE SESSIO N DURATIO N

Previou s period Previou s year

00:01:01

00:02:02 00:01:07

BO UNCE RATE

Previou s period Previou s year

61.64%

48.36% 7 6.26%

TO P SO URCES BY  SESSIO NS

Medium Sessions 

Pre vio us  p e rio d
(none) 7 93
organic 7 53
referral 211

7 91
418
160

NEW VS RETURNING

Vis itor T ype  Sess ions 

New Visitor 82.4%
Returning Visitor 17 .6%

TO P REFERRERS BY  SESSIO NS

Source  Sess ions 

Pre vio us  p e rio d
m .facebook.com 98
facebook.com 25
espanol.helpm egrowsm c.org 17
em -ui.constantcontact.com 16
l.facebook.com 13
lp.constantcontactpages.com 6
ham aicons.responsesuite.com 5
sm cgov.org 5
helpm egrowsm c.org 3

+47
+15
+16
+5
-3
+1
+5
-2
-6

FACEBOOK INSIGHTS

FANS CO UNT

Previou s period Previou s year

1,546

1,541 1,440

FAN ADDS

Previou s period Previou s year

7

14 45

PAGE IMPRESSIO NS

Previou s period Previou s year

22,376

2,838 258,498

PAGE ENGAGEMENT RATE

Previou s period Previou s year

2.25%

4.40% 3.05%

ATTACHMENT 9.3



3 of 7

TO P PO STS BY  ENGAGEMENT RATE

As we em erge from  the pandem ic, First 5 calls on
our CA legislators to not only repair, but
restructure & im prove, the way we support young
children & fam ilies in  CA, esp. those furthest from

11.65% 5 0 1

Early childhood providers are foundational to the
success of young children, fam ilies, and our
com m unity. In  case you m issed this story, here it is!
#childcarehero #childcareisessential

9.09% 4 0 0

CA’s child care system  is on the brink of collapse.
We m ust increase provider reim bursem ent rates,
provide access across all care settings, and create
m ore affordable care for parents by elim inating

8.16% 3 0 0

The CO VID19 Child Care Response Team  has
created a special “Child Care Hero” decal
celebrating early learning professionals. Did you
get yours yet? Learn m ore about our work in

7 .56% 4 0 2

Post  Wit h  Image Engage me nt  Rat e Tot al Re act ions Post  Comme nt s Post  Share s

TO P PO STS BY  IMPRESSIO NS

Are you interested in getting vaccinated? Take a look! (id: 618117351594890_5314191718654073) 130 127

The CO VID19 Child Care Response Team  has created a special “Child Care Hero” decal celebrating
early learning professionals. Did you get yours yet? Learn m ore about our work in  support of early
learning educators: https://bit.ly ... (id: 618117351594890_5348659638540614)

120 119

As we em erge from  the pandem ic, First 5 calls on our CA legislators to not only repair, but
restructure & im prove, the way we support young children & fam ilies in  CA, esp. those furthest
from  opportunity. Read m ore about how to do ... (id: 618117351594890_5372585656148012)

104 103

Early childhood providers are foundational to the success of young children, fam ilies, and our
com m unity. In  case you m issed this story, here it is! #childcarehero #childcareisessential
https://bit.ly/3aCT0V4 (id: 618117351594890_5353184964754748)

99 99

Post  Wit h  Image Post  Impre ss ions Post  Re ach

PAID ADVERTISEMENTS

PAID AD ENGAGEMENT

O ur Work Page -
ENG/SPN (id :
23847523958980762)

25 114 0.7 7 % $0.98

Traum a & Resiliency -
ENG/SPN (id :
23847525380100762)

8 45 0.92% $1.09

Ad ID wit h  image Post  Re act ions Link Clicks CT R (Link Click-T hrough Rat e ) CPC (Cost  pe r Link Click)

1

ATTACHMENT 9.3

https://www.facebook.com/F5SMC/photos/a.634326006640691/5372585656148012/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/618117351594890/posts/5353184964754748/
https://www.facebook.com/F5SMC/photos/a.634326006640691/5372686432804601/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/F5SMC/photos/a.634326006640691/5348659638540614/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/618117351594890/posts/5314191718654073/
https://www.facebook.com/F5SMC/photos/a.634326006640691/5348659638540614/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/F5SMC/photos/a.634326006640691/5372585656148012/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/618117351594890/posts/5353184964754748/
https://external-iad3-2.xx.fbcdn.net/safe_image.php?d=AQGOA7EEr79EW-BT&url=https%3A%2F%2Fscontent-iad3-2.xx.fbcdn.net%2Fv%2Ft45.1600-4%2F172499582_23847523963860762_6394778239814137851_n.jpg%3Fccb%3D1-3%26_nc_ohc%3DnuK7YK6OjUsAX-1PeQf%26_nc_ht%3Dscontent-iad3-2.xx%26oh%3De5d0e79697e3bee3af5bb2492b8963db%26oe%3D60C614E2&cfs=1&ccb=3-5&_nc_hash=AQElRVcAMR4knRYq
https://external-iad3-2.xx.fbcdn.net/safe_image.php?d=AQHkOFfvIyErU6H0&url=https%3A%2F%2Fscontent-iad3-2.xx.fbcdn.net%2Fv%2Ft45.1600-4%2F131977677_23846598163490762_4808778487790970183_n.jpg%3Fccb%3D1-3%26_nc_ohc%3DNpaoX4NyO7EAX-GCadI%26_nc_ht%3Dscontent-iad3-2.xx%26oh%3Dce6668c9735fcf19ea3470dfc12c966c%26oe%3D60C50F01&cfs=1&ccb=3-5&_nc_hash=AQE-TPeEYL1D80nR


4 of 7

AMO UNT SPENT

Previou s period Previou s year

$160.50

100% 100%

IMPRESSIO NS

Previou s period Previou s year

19,688

100% 100%

REACH

Previou s period Previou s year

7,844

100% 100%

CLICKS (ALL)

Previou s period Previou s year

456

100% 100%

INSTAGRAM INSIGHTS

FO LLO WERS

Previou s period Previou s year

1,154

1,152 N/A

ENGAGEMENT RATE

Previou s period Previou s year

5.21%

4.89% 6.46%

LIKES O N PO STS

Previou s period Previou s year

76

80 248

CO MMENTS O N PO STS

Previou s period Previou s year

0

0 1

TO P PO STS BY  ENGAGEMENT RATE

Happy Earth Day to all of you! 10.11% 9 0

Toxic stress and adverse childhood experiences represent a public health crisis. They can lead to lasting negative
health outcom es. Medi-Cal providers can help respond by screening for #ACEs and with traum a-inform ed care, and
screenings are covered by Medi-Cal. Learn m ore at www.acesaware.org

9.09% 7 0

Did you know Día de los Libros is celebrated all around the world? It' s a day to celebrate literacy for children of all
backgrounds. During social distancing, we will still celebrate and #DiaTogether virtually on April 30 at 10 a.m . PT with
story tim e, activities for kids and m ore on Facebook live! Learn m ore: http://bit.ly/Dia-Storytim e

7 .69% 6 0

May 1 @  10 a.m . Facebook Live @ sm chealth @ CountyofSanMateo Join us live to com m em orate Mental Health
Month! Watch a cooking dem o, enjoy a nature m editation, and hear about all the ways you can participate
throughout the entire m onth of May

6.7 3% 7 0

Post  Wit h  Image

ATTACHMENT 9.3

https://www.instagram.com/p/CN-dl_vrQ2E/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CON9dcMAlp_/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CN6PwRcIYE5/
https://www.instagram.com/p/COB31eCLPtZ/


5 of 7

TO P PO STS BY  IMPRESSIO NS

Worried about your rent? The CA Covid-19 Rent Relief program  supports renters and landlords experiencing
hardship. For inform ation on eligibility or for assistance in applying, please visit HousingisKey.com  or call the
YCCA Fam ily Resource Center at 916-572-0560, staff is available for assistance in English , Spanish , Russian, and
Farsi.⠀

107 102

All children experience the world differently, and those differences are even greater for children with autism .
O ur understanding and support can help ease daily challenges…while celebrating the uniqueness of all children.
O ur friends at Sesam e Street in  Com m unities has m any resources to celebrate and support every child.
www.sesam estreetincom m unities.org⠀ #Autism AwarenessDay #Autism AwarenessMonth2021

106 98

May 1 @  10 a.m . Facebook Live @ sm chealth @ CountyofSanMateo Join us live to com m em orate Mental Health
Month! Watch a cooking dem o, enjoy a nature m editation, and hear about all the ways you can participate
throughout the entire m onth of May

104 97

La vacuna es gratuita y estará disponible para todos sin im portar su estatus m igratorio. |  The vaccine is free
and will be available to everyone regardless of im m igration status. � Stay inform ed:
sm chealth.org/covidvaccine #MaskUpSMC #VaxxUpSMC

103 83

Post  Wit h  Image Impre ss ions Re ach

TWITTER INSIGHTS

FO LLO WERS

Previou s period Previou s year

638

633 609

FO LLO WER ENGAGEMENT RATE

Previou s period Previou s year

4.39%

4.27 % 10.51%

RETWEETS O F O RIGINAL PO STS

Previou s period Previou s year

7

8 21

MENTIO NS

Previou s period Previou s year

6

4 28

IMPRESSIO NS

3.6K
TO P RETWEETED PO STS

Post  

All children experience the world differently, and those differences are even greater for children … 1
Don’t m iss the m ask m obile this week: �� Apr 19 San Mateo �� Apr 20 Pacifica �� Apr 21 East … 1
Even before the pandem ic, m ore than 1/2 of CA kids experienced at least one Adverse Childhood … 1
Happy Día de los Libros! Join the celebration of literacy for children of all backgrounds with @ Firs… 1
RT @ warrenslocum : CO VID highlights early education need in San Mateo County - with access co… 1
Today is First 5 Advocacy Day! We’re talking to legislators about our Whole-Child, Whole Fam ily Ag… 1
RT @ BuildUpSMC: Last Tuesday, our SMC BO S gave a proclam ation for the Week of the Young Ch… 2
The CO VID19 Child Care Response Team  has created a special “Child Care Hero” decal celebrating … 2

ATTACHMENT 9.3

https://www.instagram.com/p/CNWNTCXLMst/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CNK9I5GrZPS/
https://www.instagram.com/p/COB31eCLPtZ/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CNbDz7Tnl8B/


6 of 7

NOTES

1. Impress ions are the number of times your content is  displayed. Reach is  the total number of people who see your content.

FO LLO WERS

90
LINKEDIN INSIGHTS

ENGAGEMENT RATE

Previou s period Previou s year

7.9%

5.2% 1.9%

IMPRESSIO NS

Previou s period Previou s year

189

364 107

LIKES

Previou s period Previou s year

9

5 0

TO P PO STS BY  ENGAGEMENT RATE (WITH IMAGE)

Medi-Cal providers--becom e “ACEs Aware!” Com plete a free, two-hour training to learn about

adverse childhood experiences (ACEs), toxic stress, screening, risk assessm ent, and evidence-

based care to effectively intervene on toxic stress. The training is required to receive paym ent

f th ACE i f M di C l Si t

25.0% 1 0

If your child is not potty trained, how m any diapers do you have on hand right now? That’s a

question that parents who struggle to afford the expense — about $70-$80 per m onth, per

baby — can answer easily, because m anaging diaper need is am ong their m ost significant

i ti htt // ti /3 E k i

18.2% 1 1

Color-Brave: An Early Childhood Learning Com m unity for Adults Caretakers Register to join

us on April 27, 2021 @  5:30 pm  PT/8:30 pm  ET https://bit.ly/2R84JUG
16.7 % 0 1

#WOYC21 is our opportunity to renew our com m itm ent to ensuring that all young children

and their fam ilies in  San Mateo County, and across the country, have access to high-quality

childcare. We are so happy to see our com m unity on board! https://bit.ly/2O L23LS

13.3% 1 0

Don’t m iss the m ask m obile this week: �� Apr 19 San Mateo �� Apr 20 Pacifica �� Apr 21

East Palo Alto �� Apr 22 Daly City If each of us wears a m ask, everyone is protected. Visit:

zcu.io/j1O r #MaskUpSMC

13.3% 1 1

All children experience the world differently, and those differences are even greater for

children with autism . O ur understanding and support can help ease daily challenges…while

celebrating the uniqueness of all children. Sesam e Street in  Com m unities has m any

t l b t d t hild L htt //bit l /2P X KU

11.1% 0 1

Post  wit h  image Engage me nt  Rat e Like s Clicks

EMAIL CAMPAIGNS

EMAIL CAMPAIGNS

Com m ission Meeting Notification 26.00% 90 37 2 13 14.00%
RFQ  - Hom e Visiting 24.30% 85 37 6 6 7 .00%

Campaign  Name Ope n Rat e Ope ns Se nds Clicks Click Rat e

ATTACHMENT 9.3

https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:activity:6788153624242470912
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:activity:6785980088589541376
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:activity:6790446991856947200
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:activity:6787523497296961536
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:activity:6790329488036130816
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:activity:6783795192639037440


Attachment 10 

Page 1 of 3 

DATE: May 24, 2021  

TO: First 5 San Mateo County (F5SMC) Commission 

FROM: Kitty Lopez, Executive Director 

RE: Committee Updates 

Finance and Administration Committee Meeting – May 10, 2021 Meeting 

▪ Commission Members: Rosanne Foust, Pam Frisella, Alexis Becerra 

▪ Staff: Kitty Lopez, Khanh Chau 

Commissioner Becerra chaired the meeting. 

1. Review of Budget Monitoring Report as of April 30, 2021

Kitty Lopez briefly presented an overview of the Budget Monitoring Report as of April 30,
2021 comparing to 83% YTD Benchmark (Attachments 10A, 10B, 10C, 10D). YTD Total
Revenue is 6% higher than YTD benchmark due to the inclusion of fiscal year Prop 56 Tax
revenue and higher Interest revenue. YTD Total Appropriations is 30% below YTD
Benchmark due to underspending across investment strategies in the first-year program
executions as the new funding cycle began; pending planning and contracting of SPIP
FY18-20 Carry Over in Children’s Health & Development and Evaluation focus areas;
delayed grant execution with no-cost extension in the Other Grants due to COVID 19.
Projected Ending Fund balance of $12.580 million or 133%, that represents a positive
variance of 33% or $3.156 million higher than the planned budget.

Committee members reviewed the Budget Monitoring Report as of April 30, 2021 and had
no further questions.

2. Review and Recommend Approval of F5SMC’s Policies and Bylaws for FY2021-22

Kitty Lopez cited that every year we need to review and approve Policies and Bylaws for
the next fiscal year for compliance requirements. Kitty Lopez stated that per the Policy and
Bylaws memo, we have 5 policies remain unchanged and two policies are amended: the
Contract and Procurement policy and the Bylaws are amended for consistency with the
amended Contract and Procurement Policy; and the Administrative Cost policy is amended
to maximum 15% from 12%. These Policies and Bylaws changes are reflected in detail in
the Policy and Bylaws memo.

Committee members asked what types of contract amounts that are below $50,000
threshold and are under Executive Director’s authority. Kitty Lopez responded that
examples of those contracts are the audit services contract or consultant contracts.

Committee members endorsed the Approval of F5SMC’s Policies and Bylaws for FY2021-
22.

3. Review and Recommend Approval of F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Draft Budget and the Use
of Ending Fund Balance (Reserves*) to Fund F5SMC’s FY 2021-22 Adopted Budget

Kitty Lopez briefly stated background information of the proposed FY2021-22 Draft Budget:
withdrawal Reserves to fund strategic plan; COVID-19 caused delayed program executions
across the investment portfolio; and underspending SPIP FY18-20 Carry Over. Kitty Lopez
restated Finance and Administration Committee endorsement of the implementation of the



Attachment 10 

Page 2 of 3 

SPIP FY 2018-20 Carry Over in coordination within 3-year time frame of the new strategic 
plan FY 2020-23 at the February 8, 2021 Finance and Administration Committee Meeting.  

Kitty Lopez walked through the Budget Assumptions and FY2021-22 Draft Budget 
Summary. Kitty Lopez cited that the FY2021-22 Draft Budget is developed based on the 
financial information available at the present time while waiting for new Tobacco Tax 
Revenue Projections to be released at the end of May 2021;  actual program expenditures 
will become available after FY 2020-21 Year-End Closing. Kitty Lopez stated the FY2021-
22 Draft Budget results in a budget deficit of $1.6 M and we will continue to draw down the 
Reverses to fund the FY2021-22 Adopted Budget, per Commission knowledge and pre-
approval Kitty Lopez cited the Budget Narratives and Budget worksheets are presented in 
conjunction with Budget memo. 

Committee members reviewed the FY2021-22 Draft Budget and complemented the clarity 
of the Draft Budget and the usefulness of the Budget Narratives. 

Committee members asked for an update of the State CTDFA audit. Kitty Lopez responded 
that the State CTDFA audit is pending and will update the Committee at the upcoming 
Finance meeting. 

Committee members endorsed the approval of the FY2021-22 Draft Budget. 

4. Discussion

• Auditor for the audit services for the year ending 6.30.2021:

Kitty Lopez stated that every year we send out Request for Qualifications for the audit
services to 3 audit firms, but only R.J. Ricciardi, (RJR) Inc. has submitted its audit proposal
including a peer review letter. RJR received a fail peer review opinion for its peer review in
2019. Staff currently sent other RFQs for the audit services to other audit firms and
contacted the Controller Office for further advice in this regard. RJR response letter to the
CalCPAs Peer Review Committee outlining its firm’s remedies to the findings is placed on
file. RJR informed staff that its firm is requesting a new  accelerated peer review to be
conducted in May 2021 with expected completion by the end of May. Staff will keep the
Committee updated on this process at the next  Finance and Administration Committee
Meeting June 14, 2021.

• Office Space

Kitty Lopez stated that office lease will be expired end of October 2021, and we currently
are in  discussions with Borel Estate Company  for options of moving to new and smaller
office space or staying  at the current office with cost saving offers. Committee members
suggested 5 - year lease and negotiation of current space or new space starting at $4/SQF
given the current commercial office space trend in the region.

The next Finance and Administration Committee Meeting will be held on June 14, 2021

Early Childhood Evaluation Advisory Committee Meeting – May 17, 2021 

• Commission Members: Louise Rogers (Chair); Carole Groom; Neel Patel 

• Grantee Representatives: Heather Cleary, Peninsula Family Service; 
Carol Elliot, AbilityPath 



Attachment 10 

Page 3 of 3 

• F5SMC Staff: Kitty Lopez, Michelle Blakely, Jenifer Clark 

The Early Childhood Evaluation Advisory Committee met virtually on Monday, May 17th.   The 
group welcomed Supervisor Carole Groom to her first subcommittee meeting.  The primary 
topic of discussion was the preliminary analysis of the Trauma-Informed Organizational 
Practices Assessment data, which thus far has been completed by seven child- and family-
serving organizations in San Mateo County.  The group discussed a variety of issues that 
could affect how the data are interpreted and used, such as response rates within agencies; 
whether respondents have enough understanding about the functioning of Trauma-Informed 
Organizations to accurately assess their own agencies; differences in results based on 
whether items are asking about client-directed or staff-directed organizational practices; and 
patterns of responses by variables such as role, tenure, supervisory status, race/ethnicity, 
home language in childhood, and gender identity. Organizational-level data presentations are 
in progress with participating agencies, and the results have been shared with the consultants 
working on the TRISI project. 

The next meeting of the Early Childhood Evaluation Advisory Committee is scheduled to be 
held virtually on Monday, July 19th at 3:30 pm.  



Attachment 10A 

DATE: May 24, 2021 

TO: First 5 San Mateo County Commission 

FROM: Kitty Lopez, Executive Director 

RE: Budget Monitoring Report as of April 30, 2021 

BUDGET MONITORING REPORT as of April 30, 2021 HIGHLIGHTS 

Budget Monitoring Report as of April 30, 2021 Highlights  

The Budget Monitoring Report as of April 30, 2021 is presented in Attachments 10A, 10B, 10C, and 
10D. Key Budget Monitoring Report highlights are as following:  

YTD Benchmark: 83.33% 

REVENUES 

• YTD Interest Revenue projection is $125K or 86%, that represents a positive variance or 2%
higher than YTD Benchmark.

• YTD Tobacco Tax Revenue projections are $4.998 million or 99%, that represents a positive
variance or 15% higher than YTD Benchmark due to the inclusion of one-time fiscal year
disbursement of Prop 56 Tax revenue.

• YTD Other Grant Revenue is $732K or 57%, which is 27% lower than YTD Benchmark due to
some grants started its first-year execution, delayed grant execution and various grants with no-
cost extensions due to COVID 19.

• YTD Total Revenues projections are $5.855 million or 90%, that represents a positive variance or
6% higher than YTD Benchmark. Major attributable factors to this positive variance are
associated with one-time fiscal year disbursement of Prop 56 Tax revenue.

APPROPRIATIONS 

• YTD Program Expenditures projections are $4.302 million or 54%, that represents a positive
variance or 30% below YTD Benchmark. Major contributions to this positive variance are
attributable to underspending across investment strategies due to first-year program executions
as the new funding cycle began; pending planning and contracting of SPIP FY18-20 Carry Over
in Children’s Health & Development and Evaluation focus areas; delayed grant execution with no-
cost extension in the Other Grants due to COVID 19.

• YTD Admin Expenditures projections of $585K or 76% that represents a positive variance or 8%
below YTD Benchmark.  Major contributions to this positive variance are attributable to savings in
various Office Supplies and Business Travel Expenses associated with shelter-in-place and
working outside the office.

• YTD Total Appropriations (Net Appropriations*) projections are $4.886 million or 56%, that
represents a positive variance or 28% below YTD Benchmark. Major contributions to this positive
variance are attributable to underspending across investment strategies due to first-year program
executions; pending planning and contracting of SPIP FY18-20 Carry Over in Children’s Health &
Development and Evaluation focus areas; delayed Other Grants execution due to COVID 19 and
under spending in various Administrative Operation Budget Lines.

ENDING FUND BALANCE (RESERVES*) 

• Currently, we are projecting Ending Fund balance (Reserves*) of $12.580 million or 133%, that
represents a positive variance of 33% or $3.156 million higher than the planned budget.



  Attachment 10A 

 

Major contributions to this positive variance are attributable to high Prop 56 Tax Revenue 
disbursement paired with under spending in both Program and Administrative Appropriations.  
 

CHALLENGES: None at this time. 



Attachment 10B

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY  
YTD Benchmark: 

83.33%

FY20-21   

Revised Budget

YTD Actuals as 

of April 30, 2021
Accruals YTD Combined

YTD Combined   

vs.   

FY20-21 Revised 

Budget   

(%)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (Beginning Reserves*) 11,610,847         11,610,847      - 11,610,847   100%

A. Interest Revenue 145,467 113,495           12,122 125,617        86%

B. Tobacco Tax Revenue 5,064,000           4,274,279        424,000          4,698,279     93%

Tobacco Tax Revenue Fiscal Year 

Allocations
5,064,000           4,274,279        424,000          4,698,279     93%

SPIP FY18-20 Carry Over to FY 20-21

C. Other Grant Revenues 1,293,605           184,418           547,466          731,884        57%

F5CA Other Grants / IMPACT Grant 400,000 118,154           100,000          218,154        55%

Non-Tobacco Tax Grants (DLP, PHD, 

SHD, MHSA)
893,605 66,264 447,466          513,730        57%

TOTAL REVENUES 6,503,072           4,572,192        983,588          5,555,780     85%

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUND (Total Sources*) 18,113,919         16,183,039      983,588          17,166,627   95%

PROGRAM APPROPRIATIONS

D1. Strategic Plan Investment - SPIP FY 20-23 3,780,000           1,052,324        945,000          1,997,324     53%

Community Investments (FE, CH&D, EL) 3,180,000           882,144           795,000          1,677,144     53%

Evaluation 113,000 26,360 28,250 54,610          48%

Policy, Advocacy, & Communications (PAC) 487,000 143,820           121,750          265,570        55%

D2. Strategic Plan Investment - SPIP FY 18-20 Carry-

Over
1,075,000           56,825 57,946 114,771        11%

Community Investments (FE, CH&D, EL) 400,000 - 32,946 32,946          8%

Evaluation 350,000 - - - 0%

Policy, Advocacy, & Communications (PAC) 325,000 56,825 25,000 81,825          25%

D3. No Cost Extension SPIP FY18-20 580,355 406,201           71,705 477,906        82%

Family Engagement 19,067 19,642 - 19,642          103%

Children Health & Development - Carry 

Over
149,411 79,074 35,168 114,242        76%

 Early Learning - Carry Over 314,649 241,576           36,536 278,112        88%

Other Evaluation Projects - Carry Over 28,050 28,050 - 28,050          100%

PAC - Carry Over 69,179 37,859 - 37,859          55%

E. Other Grants 1,263,418           442,355           206,873          649,228        51%

F5CA Other Grants / IMPACT Grant 350,000 - 87,500 87,500          25%

Non-Tobacco Tax Grants (DLP, PHD, SHD, 

MHSA)
913,418 442,355           119,373          561,728        61%

F. Program Operations 1,217,033           928,141           6,938 935,078        77%

Program Shared Operating Budget 194,250 123,995           6,938 130,933        67%

Program Staff S&B & Shared Admin Staff 

Time
844,055 660,121           - 660,121        78%

Evaluation Staff S&B 178,728 144,025           - 144,025        81%

Total Program Appropriations (D1+D2+D3+E+F) 7,915,807          2,885,846         1,288,461   4,174,307 53%

ADMIN APPROPRIATIONS

G. Admin Shared Operating Budget 194,250 123,995           6,938 130,933        67%

H. Admin Staff S&B 579,239 453,757           - 453,757        78%

Total Admin Appropriations (G+H) 773,489 577,752 6,938          584,690 76%

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (Net Appropriations*) 8,689,295           3,463,598        1,295,398       4,758,996     55%

Surplus / (Deficit) (Total Revenues - Total Appropriations) (2,186,223)          1,108,594        (311,810)         796,784        

ENDING FUND BALANCE 9,424,623           12,719,441      (311,810)         12,407,631   132%

Total S&B 1,602,022           1,257,903        - 1,257,903     79%

SUMMARY BUDGET MONITORING REPORT as of April 30, 2021



Attachment 10C

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY  Attachment 3.A YTD Benchmark: 83.33%

ORG/ACCT#

FY20-21 

Revised 

Budget

YTD Actuals as 

of April 30, 2021
Accruals YTD Combined

YTD Combined             

vs.

FY20-21 

Revised Budget               

(%)

 Notes to Budget Monitoring Report 

 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

(Beginning Reserves*)        11,610,847 11,610,847 11,610,847 100%

 A. Interest Revenue   19510-1521  145,467 113,495 12,122 125,617 86% $12k is April Interest revenue estimate

 B. Tobacco Tax Revenue 5,064,000 4,274,279 424,000 4,698,279 93%

Tobacco Tax Revenue Fiscal 

Year Allocations   19510-1861           5,064,000 4,274,279 424,000 4,698,279 93% $424K are March and April Revenue estimates

 C. Other Grant Revenues 1,293,605 184,418 547,466 731,884 57%

 F5CA IMPACT Grant FY20-23   19510-1861  400,000 118,154 100,000 218,154 55%

$100K are Q3 revenue estimates. Delayed execution of 

the Home Visiting Grant

 F5SF IMPACT HUB TA FY20-21   19510-2643  49,902 41,585 41,585 83% $41K are Q1,Q2 & Q3 revenue estimates. County of San Mateo BHRS - 

Mental Health Services MHSA 

Prop 63   19510-2643  184,703 110,176 110,176 60% $110K are Q1, Q2 &Q3 Revenue estimates

 Peninsula Healthcare District - 

HMG Call Center Grant FY19-20   19510-2643  35,000 0 0%

Deferred grant revenue. Revenue recognition during the 

audit. Grant revenue received in FY19-20. 

 Peninsula Healthcare District - 

HMG Call Center Grant FY20-21   19510-2643  50,000 50,000 50,000 100% New grant award FY20-21

 David Lucile Packard- Help Me 

Grow FY20-22   19510-2643  75,000 0 0%

Deferred grant revenue. Revenue recognition during the 

audit. Grant revenue received in FY19-20. 

 Sequoia Healthcare District - 

Special Needs Grant FY20-23   19510-2643  363,000 282,628.00 282,628 78%

$191K is revenue accruals & $90K is Q3 revenue 

estimates

 Sequoia Healthcare District - 

Mental Health Grant FY20-23   19510-2643  86,000 0 0% Pending planning and contracting of grant execution.

Aurrera Health Group - ACES Aware  19510-2643  50,000 15,210 13,077 28,287 57% $13K is Q3 revenue accrual

Human Services Agency - Build Up Kids   19510-2643  

Deferred grant revenue. Revenue recognition during the 

audit. Grant revenue received in FY19-20. 

 Wellness Grant  19510-2101 1,054 1,054 County grant award to F5 FY20-21

 TOTAL REVENUES          6,503,072 4,572,192 983,588 5,555,780 85%

Positive variances are associated with high Prop 56 

Revenue receipt. 

 TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

(TOTAL SOURCES*)         18,113,919 16,183,039 983,588 17,166,627 95%

 APPROPRIATIONS   

 PROGRAM APPROPRIATIONS 

 D1. Strategic Plan Investment - SPIP FY 20-

23 3,780,000 1,052,324 945,000 1,997,324 53%

Underspending due to new programs started its first-

year execution as the new funding cycle began, program 

adjustments due to the pandemic and leveraging from 

the Children Health & Development portfolio.

 Family Engagement  19540-6125 1,060,000         422,330 265,000 687,330 65% $265K is Q3 expenditure estimates

 Children Health & Development  19540-6156 1,060,000         159,872 265,000 424,872 40% $265K is Q3 expenditure estimates

 Early Learning  19540-6263 1,060,000         299,942 265,000 564,942 53% $265K is Q3 expenditure estimates

 Grant Management and Other 

Evaluation Projects 19540-6265 113,000 26,360 28,250 54,610 48% Include Persimmony Grant Management System Policy Advocacy, 

Communications & Systems 

Change 19540-6814 380,000 143,820 95,000 238,820 63% $95K is Q3 expenditure estimates

 Emerging Projects   19540-6814 107,000 0 26,750 26,750 25% $26K is Q3 expenditure estimates

 D2. Strategic Plan Investment - SPIP FY 18-

20 Carry-Over 1,075,000         56,825 57,946 114,771 11%

The implementation of the SPIP FY 2018-20 Carry 

Over Funds are in coordination within the 3-year 

time frame of the new strategic plan FY 2020-23; 

said Carry Over Funds are served as leverage fund 

for obligations of existing Other Grants in the 

Children Health & Development portfolio. 

 Children Health & Development - 

Carry Over  19540-6156 300,000 32,946 32,946 11% $33K is Q3 expenditure estimates

  Early Learning - Carry Over  19540-6263 100,000 0 0%

 Other Evaluation Projects - Carry 

Over  19540-6265 350,000 0 0%

 PAC - Carry Over  19540-6814 150,000 25,000 25,000 17% $25K is expenditure estimate

 Emerging Projects - Carry Over  19540-6814 175,000 56,825 56,825 32% Pandemic Recovery TBD

 D3. SPIP FY18-20 No Cost Extension  580,355 406,201 71,705 477,906 82% All no-cost extention Agreements will end 6.30.2021.

 Family Engagement - No Cost 

Extension  19540-6125 19,067 19,642 19,642 103%

 Children Health & Development - 

No Cost Extension  19540-6156 149,411 79,074 35,168.43 114,242 76% AbilityPath with extension through 6.30.2021

  Early Learning - No Cost 

Extension  19540-6263 314,649 241,576 36,536.33 278,112 88% SMCOE with extension through 6.30.2021

 Other Evaluation Projects - No 

Cost Extension  19540-6265 28,050 28,050 28,050 100%

 PAC - No Cost Extension  19540-6814 69,179 37,859 37,859 55%

 E. Other Grants 1,263,418 442,355 206,873 649,228 51%

Various Other Grant Funders allow No-Cost 

Extension due to COVID 19

 F5CA IMPACT Grant  19540-6126 350,000 0 87,500 87,500 25% $87K is expenditure estimate

 F5SF IMPACT HUB TA FY20-21  19540-6126 42,418 0 0% New grant execution County of San Mateo BHRS - 

Mental Health Services MHSA 

Prop 63  19540-6131 120,000 34,340 30,000 64,340 54% $30K is expenditure estimate

 Peninsula Healthcare District - 

HMG Call Center Grant FY19-20  19540-6131 27,000 0 0 0%

 Peninsula Healthcare District - 

HMG Call Center Grant FY20-21  19540-6131 35,000 

New grant execution in calendar year, which will be 

ended 12.31.21.

 David Lucile Packard- Help Me 

Grow  19540-6131 76,000 55,252 55,252 73%

Grant execution in calendar year, which will be ended 

12.31.21.

 Sequoia Healthcare District - 

Special Needs Grant  19540-6131 385,000 206,758 73,623 280,381 73% $73K is expenditure estimate

 Sequoia Healthcare District - 

Mental Health Grant  19540-6131 63,000 15,750 15,750 25% $15K is expenditure estimate

Aurrera Health Group - ACES Aware 19540-6131 35,000 19,288 19,288 55% New grant execution San Mateo County Human 

Services Agency - Build Up Kids 

Facilities Grant  19540-6131 130,000 126,717 126,717 97%

DETAILS BUDGET MONITORING REPORT as of April 30, 2021



Attachment 10C

ORG/ACCT#

FY20-21 

Revised 

Budget

YTD Actuals as 

of April 30, 2021
Accruals YTD Combined

YTD Combined                         

vs.                  

FY20-21 

Revised Budget                    

(%)

 Notes to Budget Monitoring Report 

 F. Program Operations 1,217,033 928,141 6,938 935,078 77%

 Program Shared Operating 

Budget  194,250 123,995 6,938 130,933 67% Schedule 1

Program Staff S&B & Shared Admin Staff Time 844,055 660,121 660,121 78%

Schedule 2 - 27% Admin Staff Time allocated to 

Program

Evaluation Staff S&B 178,728 144,025 144,025 81% Schedule 2

 Total Program Appropriations 

(D1+D2+D3+E+F) 7,915,807 2,885,846 1,288,461 4,174,307 53%

Positive variances are associated with new programs 

started its first-year execution as the new funding cycle 

began and various Other Grants extensions due to 

COVID 19. 

 ADMIN APPROPRIATIONS 

 G. Admin Shared Operating Budget  194,250 123,995 6,938 130,933 67% Schedule 1

H. Admin Staff S&B 579,239 453,757 0 453,757 78% Schedule 2

 Total Administrative Appropriations  773,489 577,752 6,938 584,690 76%

Underspending in various Admin Operations budget 

lines as staff works outside the office.

 Administrative Cost Rate %  9% 17% 1% 12%

 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS                                         

(NET APPROPRIATIONS*) 8,689,295 3,463,598 1,295,398 4,758,996 55%

Positive variances are due to new funding cycle 

programs started its first-year execution as the new 

funding cycle began; various Other Grants extensions 

due to COVID 19; and udnerspending in various Admin 

Operations budget lines.

 ENDING FUND BALANCE                                 

(ENDING RESERVES*)  9,424,623         12,719,441          (311,810)              12,407,631          132%

Positive variances are associated with high Prop 56 

Revenue receipt and underspending in both Program 

and Admin budgets due to COVID 19.

Color Coding

Shared Budget/Shared Cost

Revenue ; Fund Balance

Appropriations

Salaries & Benefits



Attachment 10D

Schedule 1-  OPERATING BUDGET MONITORING REPORT as of April 30, 2021 YTD Benchmark: 83.33%

 ORG   /  

ACCT# 

FY20-21              

Revised 

Budget                     

YTD Actuals 

as of April 30, 

2021

Accruals
YTD 

Combined

YTD Combined                         

vs.                  

FY20-21 

Revised Budget                    

(%)

 Notes to Budget Monitoring Report 

I. Services and Supplies

Outside Printing & Copy Svc 19510-5191 2,000 0 0 0%

General Office Supplies 19510-5193 8,000 2,824 2,824 35%

Photocopy Lease & Usage 19510-5196 5,000 220 220 4%

 Computer Supplies 19510-5211 10,000 1,794 1,794 18%

Software licenses and Place holder for emergency 

IT equipment

 County Memberships - (e.g. F5 Assn 

Dues) 19510-5331 15,000 13,520 13,520 90%

Auto Allowance 19510-5712 11,000 8,673 8,673 79%

 Meetings & Conference Expense 19510-5721 10,000 0 0 0%

 Commissioners Meetings & 

Conference Exp 19510-5723 5,000 0 0 0%

 Other Business Travel Expense 19510-5724 6,000 0 0 0%

 Dept. Employee Training Expense 19510-5731 7,000 3,360 3,360 48%

 Wellness grant  19510-5856 0 132 132 #DIV/0!

 Other Professional Services 19510-5858 30,000 23,730 3,150 26,880 90%

 Sub Total - Services & Supplies           109,000             54,253               3,150             57,403 53% Underspending due to staff works outside office.

 II. Other Charges 

 Telephone Service Charges 19510-6712 4,500 2,458 264 2,722 60% Include direct Communication Services

 Automation Services - ISD 19510-6713 48,000 36,385 4,000 40,385 84%

 Annual Facilities Lease 19510-6716 97,000 76,855 76,855 79%

 General Liability Insurance 19510-6725 9,800 7,291 810 8,101 83% Liability Insurance increase

 Official Bond Insurance 19510-6727 600 209 23 232 39%

 Human Resources Services 19510-6733 2,000 302 302 15% One time cost for county online learning platform

 Countywide Security Services 19510-6738 600 512 512 85%

 All Other Service Charges 19510-6739 60,000 27,626 951 28,577 48%

 A-87 Expense 19510-6821 57,000 42,099 4,677 46,776 82%

 Sub Total - Other Charges           279,500           193,737             10,725           204,462 73%

 Total Operating Budget           388,500           247,990             13,875           261,865 67% Underspending due to staff works outside office.

 Program Shared Operating Budget            194,250           123,995               6,938           130,933 67% Allocation rate 50%

 Admin Shared Operating Budget           194,250           123,995               6,938           130,933 67% Allocation rate 50%

Schedule 2 - SALARIES & BENEFITS BUDGET MONITORING REPORT as of April 30, 2021

  Program Staff & Shared Admin Staff 844,055 660,121 660,121 78% 27% Admin staff time allocated to Program

 Evaluation Staff 178,728 144,025 144,025 81%

 Admin Staff 579,239 453,757 453,757 78%

Total Salaries and Benefits  $    1,602,022  $    1,257,903  $                -    $    1,257,903 79%

Color Coding

Shared Budget/Shared Cost

Revenue ; Fund Balance

Appropriations

Salaries & Benefits




